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JWT & Associates, LLP

Certified Public Accountants

1111 East Herndon, Suite 211, Fresno, CA 93720
Voice: (559)431-7708 Fax: (559} 431-7685

Report of Independent Auditors

Board of Directors
Del Puerto Water District
Patterson, California

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information
of the Del Puerto Water District (the District) which comprise the statements of net position as of February 28, 2022, and
the related statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position and cash flows for the year then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the District as of February 28, 2022, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Respensibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the District and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern within
one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issuec an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internat control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

e FExercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.



s Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test
basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
District's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

o Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the District's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that we identified during the
audit,

JU7 & ssociates, LLP

September 26, 2022
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Management’s Discussion & Analysis

Febiuary 28, 2022

As required by Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34, this section presents
management’s analysis of the Del Puerto Water District’s (the District) financial condition and activities
as of and for the year ended February 28, 2022. Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is
intended to serve as an introduction to the District’s basic financial statements, and should be read in
conjunction with the audited financial statements that follow this section. It is also intended to give an
overview of the previous year’s operations, and to express management’s view of how currently-known
factors will impact the District in the future.

ORGANIZATION AND BUSINESS

The Del Puerto Water District is a California special district formed under the provisions of Division 13
of the Water Code of the State of California. The approximately 45,000 acres of irrigable District lands
are located along the west side of Stanislaus, San Joaquin and Merced Counties. Stanislaus County
serves as the principal county for the District. A seven-person Board of Directors elected from among
District landowners governs the District. :

The District is under contract with the Bureau of Reclamation for its water supply, which is delivered
from the Delta-Mendota Canal, a feature of the Central Valley Project. The District was originally
organized on March 24, 1947 to contract for and administer delivery of water supplies to landowners
within the geographical boundaries of the District. On March 1, 1995, the District was reorganized
through a formal consolidation with ten other local, similarly contracted water districts. The water
service contracts of these other districts were assigned to the District and subsequently renegotiated as a
single contract providing for the delivery of up to 140,210 acre-feet of water annually. The District’s
water year runs from March 1 through February 28/29,

The District’s contractual entitlement is its primary source of supply. Use of this contractual supply is
subject fo State law and California Water Code requirements, Reclamation law, place-of-use restrictions
associated with the Bureau of Reclamnation’s State-issued permit(s), and shortages imposed under the
water shortage provisions of the District’s contract with the Bureau of Reclamation. All water is
delivered “canal-side” from the Delta-Mendota Canal through turnouts licensed to the District by the
federal government. Privately developed groundwater is available on a limited basis throughout the
District.

As a result of the chronic shortages to its contractual entitlement, ongoing drought conditions, and
increasing difficulty in achieving its water supply goals, the District has in recent years expanded its
efforts in the area of long-term supply development programs. Currently, this includes the voluntary
retirement of certain lands from service, studying the feasibility of off stream storage, local groundwater
recharge, and most notably, the beneficial use of recycled water through the North Valley Regional
Recycled Water Program, which was completed in early 2020. In addition, the District requests the
detachment of lands annexed to a City or an otherwise responsible agency for development into non-
agricultural uses. While some of these lands continue to be served under recorded Water Service
Contracts, upon development of the land, the contracts terminate and any available allocation is refurned
to the District.
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District lands have produced more than 30 different commercial crops over the years. Among the
principal crops currently grown are almonds, tomatoes, apricots, dry beans, walnuts, oats, wheat, barley,
grains, broccoli, melons, peaches, citrus, spices, cherries, wine grapes and olives. In 2021, over 83% of
the District’s irrigated lands are in permanent plantings, of which 100% are irrigated by sprinklers or drip
irrigation systems. The District has supported conservation efforts by way of providing low interest loan
funding for the installation of high-¢fficiency irrigation systems, including both micro-sprinkler and drip
emission systems, Certain of these loans have funded the installment of row-crop drip systems, a
technology relatively new to the Districts service area. In addition to supporting conservation, this
investment in irrigation technology has further complimented the District’s efforts in the area of drainage
reduction, thus resulting in improvements to nearby waterways of the State.

The District’s management staff was reorganized in 2021 and now consists of a General Manager, who
also serves as the District’s Secretary/Treasurer, a Deputy General Manager - Water Operations, a
Deputy General Manager - Water Resources, and a Director of Finance and Administration, A full-time
Executive Assistant and a Water Operations Technician suppott the management staff. The District
operates at minimal staffing levels to maintain costs, and strives to develop administrative procedures
which ensure efficiency and accuracy in its service to its constituents, however, this is becoming
increasingly difficult with the number of activities the District must now accomplish. In consultation
with the Board, the General Manager continually assesses staffing resources and needs, and it is
envisioned that at least one additional full-time Staff member will be hired in the near future.

The District’s stated mission is as follows: “Dedicated to Providing its Agricultural Customers with an
Adequate, Reliable and Affordable Water Supply”. Customer service standards and the clear
communication and implementation of District policies and procedures are set at the highest benchmarks,
Continuing to provide water to the West Side’s small family farms, which preduce some of the nation’s

most bountiful supply of fresh fruit, nuts and vegetables, remains the District’s sole focus and reason for
existence.

OVERVIEW OF THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The District’s basic financial statements are prepared on an accrual basis and in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board and
include cettain amounts based upon reliable estimates and judgments. The annual financial report

consists of a Statement of Net Position, Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position,
and a Statement of Cash Flows,

o The Statement of Net Position presents information on the District’s assets and liabilities as of a
specific date in time, with the difference between the two being reported as Net Position, QOver
time, increases or decrcases in Net Position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the
financial position of the District is improving or deteriorating,

e The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents the results of the
District’s operations during the fiscal year indicated showing Total Revenues versus Total
Expenses and how the Net Position changed during the year. This statement can be used as an
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indicator of the extent to which the District has successfully managed its budget and recovered its
costs through user fees.

o The Statement of Cash Flows presents changes in cash and cash equivalents resulting from
operational, capital, noncapital and investing activities. This statement summarizes the annual
flow of cash receipts and cash payments, and reconciles the year-end cash and cash-equivalents
balance,

s The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a
full understanding of the data provided in the basic financial statements.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
As illustrated by the financial analysis below, the District’s Net Position increased in 2021-22:

Condensed Financial Information
The following table (Table 1) shows the Disirict’s total assets, liabilities and net position:
Table 1
Balance Sheet
February 28, 2022 and February 28, 2021
{Proprietary Fund Only)

2/2812022 212812021 Variance

Current Assets $ 16,398,777 $ 11,025,401 $ 5,373,376
Noncurrent Assets $ 16,597,188 $ 16,756,849 $ (159,661)
Total Assets $ 32,995,965 ¥$ 27,782,250 $ 5,213,715
Current Liabilities $ 12,297,197 $ 6,719,489 $§ 5,577,708
Noncurrent Liabilities $ 10,972,016 $ 11,856,205 $ (884,189)
Total Liabilities $ 23,269,213 $ 18,575,604 $ 4,603,519

Net Assets:
Invested in Capital Assets $ 1,206,601 $ 1,120,293 $ 86,308
Reserved for Rate Stabllization $ 2,155,208 $ 1,648,233 $ 506,975
Resened for Capital Repayment $ 2,206,492 $ 2,713 $§ 2,203,779
Unresened $ 4,158,451 $ 6,435,317 § (2,276,866)
Total Net Position $ 9,726,752 $ 9,206,556 $ 520,196
Total Liabilities and Net Position  $ 32,995,965 $ 27,782,250 § 5,213,715

Highlights

o Current assets increased by $5,373,376, which was primarily the function of an increase in Cash on
Hand and Prepaid Water — Other Sources, offset by a decrease in Accounts Receivable.
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Non-current assets decreased by $159,661, which was primarily the function of a decrease in

investments and CVP Construction Costs, offset by increases in Property, Plant & Equipment and
Board Designated Cash.

Cutrent liabilities increased by $5,577,708. This was primarily due to a $265,095 increase in
Accounts Payable, a $264,498 increase in Accrued Expenses & Liabilities, a $4,400,075 increase in
Deferred Revenues, and a $611,644 increase in Customer Prepaid Water Tolls.

Non-current liabilities decreased by $884,189. This was primarily due to the first year payment and
amortization of the Note Payable to CoBank and CVP Construction Cost Prepayments from

Customers in the amount of $591,241 and $118,892, respectively, and a $174,056 decrease in Net
Pension Liability.

Total assets of $32,995,965 exceeded total liabilities of $23,269,213 at the fiscal yecar end by
$9,726,752, a net position increase of $520,196 or 5.65% over the prior fiscal year, This increase, or .
“net profit”, for the year, was primarily due to replenishment of reserves due to receipt of USBR

WIIN Act Funds.

The following table (Table 2) shows changes in the District’s net position for the year:

Table 2

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
For the Years ended February 28, 2022 and February 28, 2021

2/28/2022 2/28/2021 Varjance %
Operating Revenues:
Water Sales $ 7,637,678 $ 15,126,328 $ (7,488,650) -40.51%
Water Availability Charge $ 1971675 $ 1930635 $ 41,040 2.13%
Contract Conversion
Assessment $ 885825 $ - §$ 885825
Total Operating Revenues $ 10495178 §$ 17,056,963 $ (6,561,785) -38.47%
Operating Expenses: ~$§ 10870897 $ 14937360 $ (4066463) -27.22%
Total Operating Expenses $ 10,870,897 § 14,937,360 $ (4,066,463) -27.22%
Net Operating Income -
3 (375,719) $ 2,119,603 $ (2495322) 117.73%
Non-operating Revenues, Net: 3 B95915 $ 145,757 $ 750,158 514.66%
Change in Net Position $ 520,196 $ 2,265,360 $ (1,745,164) -77.04%
Total Net Assets - Beginning 8 9206556 $ 6,941,196 $ 2265360 32.64%
Total Net Assets - Ending $ 9,726,752 $ 9206556 $ 520,196 5.65%
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= Total Operating Revenues decreased by $6,561,785, or -38.47%, to $10,495,178. The decrease was
primarily due to less water supply available for sale in 2021-22 as offset by the addition of the

February 28, 2022

Contract Conversion Assessment,

s Total Operating Expenses decreased by $4,066,463, or -27.22%, to $10,870,897. The decrcase was
primarily reflective of planned expenditures for the advancement of the Del Puerto Reservoir being

less than budgeted and a greatly reduced cost of purchased water.

¢ Non-operating revenues (net) increased by $750,158 to $895,915. This increase was primarily due to
receipt of Water Infrastructure Improvements for the Nation Act Funding for the Del Puerto Canyon

Reservoir Project in the amount of $800,000.

Budget Comparisons

The following table {Table3) compares actual administrative expenditures to the 2021-22 budget:

Table 3

Administrative Budget to Actual Comparison
For the Year ended February 28, 2022

Water Awvailability Charge
Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:
Wages and Related Expenses
Conservation Sendces
Office Supplies, Rent & Other
Repairs & Maintenance
Metering Program
Assaoclation Fees
Utilities
Engineering & Consulting Fees
Legal and Audit Fees
Vehicle, Travel and Conferences
insurance
Depreciation and Amortization

Total Operating Expenses
Net Operating Income
Non-operating Revenues, Net:

Capital Expenditures

Net over/{under) Budget

Actual Budget Vartance
3 1,971,675 $ 1,971,675 3 -
$ 1,971,675 $ 1,971,675 $ -
$ 907,661 $ 977,899 3 (70,238)
$ 5,511 $ 3,888 $ 1,623
$ 215,041 $ 207,487 $ 7,554
% 8,084 $ 10,161 $ {2,077)
3 2,367 $ 6,975 $ (4,608)
5 280,483 $ 296,787 $ (7,304)
$ 22,706 $ 22,088 $ 618
$ 981,158 $ 1,052,573 $ (971,415)
$ 217,295 3$ 273,200 $ (65,905)
$ 23,323 5 23,859 $ {536)
$ 20,021 $ 19,269 $ 752
$ 71,046 5 59,763 $ 11,783
$ 2,763,698 $ 3,853,449 $ (1,089,753
$ (792,021) $ (1,881,774} $ 1,089,753
$ 895,915 $ 205652  § 600,263
$ 86,308 $ 56,736 5 29,572
$ 17,586 $ (1,642,858) § 1,660,444
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For 2021-22, administrative expenses were $1,089,753 less than budgeted, and the net of actual non-
operating revenues vs. non-operating expenses was $600,263 more than budgeted, leading to net
operating income from Administrative Operations of $1,660,444 more than budgeted.

Hightights of the variances between actual and budgeted cost centers were as follows:

e Wages and Related Expenses less than budgeted due to decreased Pension expense and OPEB
expense.

o Legal Fec Expense less than budgeted due to timing of expenditures for the Del Puerto Canyon
Reservoir Project

» Engineering and Consulting Fee Expense less than budgeted by $971,415 primarily due to the
timing of expenditures for the Del Puerto Canyon Reservoir Project.

CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital Assets

The District does not own or maintain any canals or delivery systems, limiting capital infrastructure
requirements to the replacement and addition of meters, vehicles, and tools, and the District Office and
Maintenance Facility, which was constructed new in 2003, and expanded in 2020 to add two additional
offices and a storage/workroom. As of February 28, 2022, the District had $1,206,601 (net of
accumulated depreciation) invested in the following categories of Capital Assets: Meters, Tools, Office
Equipment & Furnishings, Vehicles, Land, Buildings & Landscaping. This amount represents an $86,308
net increase over the prior fiscal year, which is primarily due to the purchase of (2) vehicles.

DEBT ADMINSTRATION
CoBank Loan Payable

The District acquired a loan from CoBank to make early repayment of its outstanding Central Valley
Project Construction Costs which were estimated to be $14,124,614 as of the USBR FY ’20 Ratecbook
Construction Obligation Schedules, as discounted per that certain Contract between the United States and
Det Puerto Water District Providing for Project Water Service from Delta Division and Facilities
Repayment, dated September 28, 2020 Contract No. 14-06-200-922-LTR1-P. By entering into this debt
obligation, the District achieved the repayment, which would have otherwise been due and payable by
year 2030, and realized other benefits for its ratepayers, including but not limited to a meaningful

reduction in the Ag Water Rate. The outstanding CoBank Loan Payable amount as of Febroary 28, 2022
was $ 9,612,104,
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SYSTEMS, CONTROLS AND LEGAL COMPLIANCE

The District adheres to a specific set of administrative procedures that guide the designing, planning,
organizing and carrying out of its programs and service. Policies which provide guidance, delegation of
authority and responsibility, reporting procedures, and accountability for resources are adopted at the
Board level. Administrative procedures and accounting systems are designed to ensure specific controls,
and budgets are adopted and reviewed periodically to ensure the safeguarding of District assets. All
District activities are undertaken in compliance with all applicable Federal, State and local laws, and
management controls and financial systems are in compliance with all regulatory statuies.

FACTORS IMPACTING FUTURE PERIODS

As discussed in Note 16 of the independent auditor’s report, the District’s existence relies exclusively on
the continued need for water supplies by Landowners within the District, and the District’s ability to
procure and administer said supplies in an adequate and affordable manner.

The chronic shortages faced by the District are the result of both regulatory and hydrologic drought, the
former primarily centered on issues facing the health and sustainability of the Sacramento-San Joaquin
Delta and the numerous plant and animal species that exist there. Because the export of water supplies to
CVP contractors and others South-of-the-Delta remains a focal point for each new regulation or order
regarding California water, it is imperative that the District remain engaged in activities which advance
solid science and programs that communicate factual information proving that exports are not the only
stressor affecting the Delta. Also critically important to the District are the currently ongoing Water
Quality Control Plan update and other activities being advanced by the State Water Resources Control
Board, the related “Voluntary Agreements” process, the long overdue implementation of an update to
Coordinated Operations Agreement between the State Water Project and the Central Valley Project, and
Reconsultation on the Biological Opinions upon which the Central Valley Project is operated in support
of the District’s Water Service Contract. These subjects continue to play out heavily into 2022, and the
District is engaged in these and other matters which both directly and indirectly affect the future
reliability — or lack thereof — of its CVP Water Supply. The challenge, however, becomes one of
balancing the need for, and efficacy of, each activity and forum against the extremely high costs of
participation, which ultimately falls on the District’s customers.

In addition to legal and regulatory forums, much emphasis and momentum has been placed on addressing
South-of-the-Delta water supply shortages through infrastrncture designed to repair what is broken about
the “plumbing” in the State of California. Cooperative efforts between the Department of Water
Resources, the Bureau of Reclamation, and the numerous agricultural and municipal water contractors
who have contracts with those governing agencies to procure water supplies, started as the Bay-Delta
Conservation Plan {BDCP) / Delta Habitat & Conveyance Conservation Plan (DHCCP), and were more
currently revised as to strategy, separated, and renamed the California Eco-Restore and California Water
Fix programs, the latter of which was a project which would develop “twin tunnels” under and across the
Delta to move water to the South-Delta pumping facilities from a changed point of diversion on the
Sacramento River. Although the District ceased funding participation and retired its initial obligation in
the development of these programs due fo uncertainty in the ultimate costs and benefits, Staff remains
engaged through its administrative activities and reports to the Board monthly on Delta conveyance
activities. Because the environmental approvals and regulatory certainty that had been goals of the
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planning effort have not materialized, management is ever-more-skeptical of these activities with respect
to bringing back reliability of the District’s contract allocation in an affordable manner. As of the writing
of this report, the California Water Fix effort has been completely abandoned as envisioned and the State
of California is regrouping its focus on a “single-tunnel™ Delta conveyance project, to which the Bureau
of Reclamation nor any of the Federal contraciors have yet to make any formal commitments in as to
participation,

Recognizing that statewide solutions may be years away, or otherwise even unachievable, the District is
currently focusing effort on mid and long-term supply development programs to provide local/regionat
solutions to its contract water supply shortage situation. These include surface storage and alternative
conveyance opportunities, local groundwater recharge, and long-term transfers between local agencies.
Most notably, as a partner in the North Valley Regional Recycled Water Program (NVRRWP), the
District studied the feasibility of importing tertiary-treated (Title 22) recycled water from the cities of
Modesto and Turlock for use as a reliable source of supply to supplement its needs. Certification of an
EIR was completed in mid-2015, setting the stage for the many approvals needed to complete the project,
including but not limited to water supply agreements between the District and the cities, water rights
permits and discharge permits approving introduction of the recycled water directly to the Delta-Mendota
Canal (DMC), project funding, easements, and multiple other steps leading to the NVRRWP's
completion. An EIS and Record of Decision were completed in 2016, leading to construction of the
NVRRWP Pipeline, Pump Station and DMC Discharge Facility. The District currently receives over
95% of the Recycled Water supply produced from both Cities, For the 2021-22 water year, the project
resulted in 6 inches of reliable supply per irrigable acre in the District, which above all else is an

extremely positive change for the future of the District and its ability to adequately serve the needs of its
landowners.

Along with the cost of solutions aimed at solving chronic supply shortages, there are also considerations
on how these shortages affect CVP Contract Water Rates. Shortages incurred since the passage of
CVPIA in the carly ‘90’s and predicted to continue for the foreseeable future mean less delivery base
across which to spread the costs of the CVP leading to potential increased instances of USBR Fiscal Year
Deficits. While the District maintains reserves dedicated to Rate Stabilization, continued monitoring of
CVP Water rates and the issues that impact them remains a key activity for District Management.

Complimentary to the monitoring of the District’s CVP Cost-of-Service Water Rates is the monitoring of
District’s Construction Obligation for the construction of the CVP. The 2020 conversion of the District’s
25-year Long-Term Water Service Contract to a “permanent” repayment contract as provided for in
Section 4011 of the Water Infrastructure and Improvements for the Nation (WIIN) Act was accompanied
by the payoff of its Construction Obligation as estimated in the USBR’s 2020 Ratebooks. However, the
actual CVP Construction Obligation of each Contractor will not be finally known until the True-up for
USBR FY 2030, which will occur in mid-2032. Coincidentally, shortly after the Contract Conversion and
related CVP Construction Payoff action, the USBR implemented the final CVP Cost Allocation Study,
which resulted in a reduced Construction Obligation as reported in the 2021 Ratebooks. During 2021, the
District was able to recover a portion of the estimated “overpayment.” Although the District’s conversion
contract specifies the terms and condition for the payoff of any residual construction cost allocation, the
Districts Board determined it to be fiscally prudent to reserve a portion of the “overpaid” Construction
Obligation to absorb annual fluctuations between now and year 2030, and to possibly be available for any

final residual amount. As the enclosed report indicates, is the District currently has reserved $2.2 Million
dedicated for construction repayment,
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In addition to the upward pressure on water rates caused by continued lack of supply, certain other USBR
financial issues are predicted to impact the District and its constituents in both the near and long-term
with respect to increased water costs. It is anticipated that extraordinary O&M costs will continue to
escalate due to the aging CVP infrastructure. In the past, extraordinary O&M was treated as a capitalized
cost within the rates, to be amortized and collected by year 2030, Under current policy, unless the costs
are related to the addition of a facility as a new feature of the CVP, or otherwise specifically authorized as
capital for repayment purposes, they are treated as current year O&M in the fiscal year expended,
regardless of magnitude. Collaborative efforts between the Contractors and Reclamation to establish a
policy for extended repayment of extra-ordinary O&M as allowed for under PL 111-11 have yet to
materialize, which presents exposure to all CVP Contractors should a major tepair or facilities failure
ocour before an cxtended repayment policy is finalized and approved by the Commissioner of
Reclamation, Fortunately, recent progress on this issue has been made, and it is anticipated that new
policy with respect to repayment of exiraordinary O&M could be implemented as soon as USBR Fiscal
Year 2023.

Additionally, Reclamation struggles to reach completion on several other issues which may or may not
result in additional costs under the Districts repayment contract. Of primary interest to CVP Contractors
is the implementation of Business Practice Guidelines for CVPIA Receipts, Program Accounting, Cost
Allocation and Cost Recovery. The Cenfral Valley Project Improvement Act (CVPIA) was signed into
Law in 1992, however contributions under the Act have not been reconciled and a formal USBR position
on topics of reimbursability, cost allocation or cost recovery have yet to be reached. Because CVPIA
activities are intrinsically tied to activities that support project operations and the Biological Opinions that
support operations, a “true-up” to Contractor contributions and expenditures is vitally important to the
sustained abtlity of the CVP 1o accurately, equitably and timely reconcile the costs of operating the
Project.

In addition to CVP financial issues, the District and its Landowners are facing a host of other issues that
will need to be balanced to ensure a stable water supply into the future. The District is currently pursuing
both Groundwater Storage (Orestimba Creek Recharge & Recovery Project ~ 15 TAF) and Reservoir
Storage (Del Puerto Canyon Reservoir — 82 TAF) in partnership with the member units of the San
Joaquin River Exchange Contractors Water Authority. Additionally, the District is a Local Agency
Partner in the Los Vaqueros Reservoir Expansion Project, and pursuing the possible benefits of the BF
Sisk Dam Raise and Reservoir Expansion Project, as well as other options to improve access to storage
and conveyance. These projects will be necessary to confront the developing effects of climate change, as
well as to achieve success while implementing the requirements of the State’s Sustainable Groundwater
Management Act (SGMA). Concurrently, through its membership in the SLDMWA, solutions are being
sought to remediate for subsidence along the Delta-Mendota Canal and to construct the San Luis
Transmission Project to ensure affordable energy supplies for the conveyance of waler through South-of-
Delta CVP facilities.

The topics mentioned in this discussion portray the challenges associated with the export of water to the
Districts service area, and the growing need to implement a variety of management tools to ensure the
Agricultural Lands we serve have access to an Adequate, Affordable and Reliable water supply.



Del Puerto Water District
Management’s Discussion & Analysis

February 28, 2022

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

This report is designed to provide Del Puerto Water District’s elected officials, landholders, customers
and creditors a general overview of the District’s finances and to demonstrate its accountability of the
revenues it receives. If you have any questions about this report or need additional information, please

contact: Del Puerto Water District, Attn: Anthea G. Hansen, General Manager/Treasurer, P.O. Box 1596,
Patterson, CA 95363-1596.




DEL PUERTO WATER DISTRICT

Statement of Net Position

February 28, 2022
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,798,145
Accounts receivable - water users and others - 2,253,554
Prepaid CVP construction costs 760,102
Prepaid water - USBR and SLDMWA 1,543,839
Prepaid water - other sources 7,842,826
Prepaid expenses 200,311
Total current assets 16,398,777
Board designated assefs
Cash and cash equivalents 2,056,312
Investrments 2,305,389
Other post-employment benefits, net (CERBT) 282,973
Total board designated assets 4,644,676
[nvestiments -
Prepaid CVP censtruction costs 10,745,911
Property, plant and equipment, net of depreciation 1,206,601
Total assets 32,995,965

Deferred outflow of resources- GASB 68 Pension -
Deferred outflow of resources- GASB 75 OPEB

Total assets and deferred outflow of resources £ 32,995,965

Liabilities and net position

Current liabilities
Accounts payable 3 905,589
Accrued expenses and liabilities 1,138,878
Current portion of long-term debt 710,133
Customer prepaid water tolls 4,329,290
Compensated absences payable 113,232
Deferred revenue 5,100,075
Total cinyent fiabilities 12,297,197
CVP construction prepayment payable 1,426,708
Long-term debt, less current portion 9,020,863
Net pension liability 334,021
Deferred Inflows of Resowrces - GASB 68 ' 148,301
Deferred Inflows of Resources - GASB 75 OPEB 42,123
Total liabilities 23,269,213

Net position

Invested in capital assets 1,206,601
Designated for rate stabilization 2,155,208
Designated for CVP construction repayment 2,206,492
Unrestricted 4,158,451
Total net position 9,726,752
Total libilities and net position $ 32,995,965

See accompanying notes to the financial statements



DEL PUERTO WATER DISTRICT

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

For the Year Ended February 28, 2022

Operating revenues

Water sales

Waler availability charge

Contract conversion assessment
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses
Purchased water
Salaries, wages and benefits
Ciice supplies, technology and other
Professional fees
Repairs and maintenance
Metering program
Association fees
Utilities
Vehicle, travel and conferences
Insurance
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Income from operations

Non-operating revenues (expenses)

Interest incomer(expense)

Unrealized gain/(loss) on investments

Agriculiural drainage loan program

Drainage activities, net

SGMA activities, not

Other non-operating income/(expense)
Total non-operating revenue, net

Net inerease in net position

Total net position, February 28, 2021

Adjustment- OPEB expense

Total net position, February 28, 2022

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

$

7,637,678
1,971,675
885,825
10,495,178

8,107,201
907,661
220,552

1,198,453

8,084
2,367
289,483
22,706
23,323
20,021
71,046

10,870,897

(375,719)

(207,766)
(3,453)
23)
102,347
50,194
954,616
895,915
520,196
9,206,556

9,726,752




DEL PUERTO WATER DISTRICT
Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended February 28, 2022

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash received fom custoimers $ 16,359,291

Cash payments for goods and services (14,907,270)

Cash payments to employees (631,582)
Net cash provided by operating aciivities 820,439

Cash flows from non-capital and rejated financing activities:

ADLP activities, net @»H

Drainage activities, net 102,347

SGMA activities, net 50,194
Net cash provided by non-capital and related financing activities 152,518

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities

Net investment in prepaid construction costs {13,91%9)
Additions to capital assets, net (147,854)
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (161,773)

Cash flows from investing activities

Net change in restricted assets (2,785,577)
Net change in investments 2,253,396
Net change in pension liabilities (40,326
Other non-operating income 802,075
Interest income/(expense) (207,766)
Unrealized gains or losses on investments 3,453
Net cash provided by investing activities 25,255
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 836,439
Cash and cash equivalents, February 28, 2021 2,809,165
Cash and cash equivalents, February 28, 2022 $ 3,645,604

See geccompanying notes to the financial statements



DEL PUERTO WATER DISTRICT

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended February 28, 2022

Reconciliation of operating income fo net cash provided
by operating activities
Income from operations
Adjustments to reconcile ncome from operations to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Changes in operating assets and labilities:
Accounts receivable - water users and other
Prepaid water
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable
Accrued Habilities
Customer prepaid water tolls
Compensated absences payable
Deferred revenue
Net cash provided by operating activities

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

$

$

(375,7119)

71,046

1,464,039
(5,781,817)
(115,135)
265,095
269,427
611,646
11,782

4,400,075

820,439



DEL PUERTO WATER DISTRICT
Statement of Net Position: - Fiduciary Fund- SWPP

February 28, 2022

Assels
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 41,699
Program receivable 2,423
Investments 102,658
Total current assets 146,780
Total assets 3 146,780

Liabilities and net position

Current liabilities
Resetved for current program expenditures 3 146,730
Tetal current liabilities 146,780
Total liabilities and net position 3 146,780

See accompanying notes to the financlal statements



DEL PUERTO WATER DISTRICT
Statement of Net Position - Fiduciary Fund- NVRRWP-RWSP
February 28, 2022

Assets
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Total current assets

Total assets

Liabilities and net position
Current liabilities
Reserved for current program expenditures
Total current liabilities

Total liabilities and net position

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

$ 909,105
24,083,650
24,992,755

$ 24,992,755

$ 24992755
24,992,755

$ 24,992,755




DEL PUERTO WATER DISTRICT
Siatement of Net Position - Fiduciary Fund- CNRA/RWSP

February 28, 2022

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 894,609
Investments 25,307,511
Total curent assets 26,202,120
Total assets $ 26,202,120

Liabilities and net position

Current liabilities
Reserved for current program expenditures § 26,202,120
Total cuirent liabilities . 26,202,120
Total labilitics and net position $ 26,202,120

See accompanying notes to the financial statements



NOTE 1:

Del Puerto Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements
February 28, 2022

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The District complies with Generally Accepted Accounting Standards (GAAP). The District’s reporting entity
applies all relevant Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. The District applies
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board (APB)
opinions issued on or before November 30, 1998, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict
GASB pronouncements, in which case, GASB prevails.

Financial Reporting Entity — GASB Statement No. 14 establishes criteria for determining which organizations
should be included in a governmental reporting entity. The focal point for preparing financial statements of a
financial reporting entity is the primary government, The identification of a financial reporting entity is built
around the concept of financial accountability. That is, if a primary goverament is financially accountable for
another entity, that entity’s financial statements must be included in the financial statements of the reporting
entity. Thus, the financial reporting entity consists of the primary government and its component units.

Primary government is defined as a state, general purpose local or special purpose local government

that has a separately elected governing body, is legally separate, and is fiscally independent of other
state or local governments,

Component units are defined as legally scparate organizations for which the elected officials of the
primary government are financially accountable, In addition, a component unit can be another
organization for which the nature and significance of its refationship with a primary government is such
that exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.

Based on these criteria and definitions, the district is the primary government and there are no potential

component units, which should be included in the financial reporting of the District as required by GASB
Statement No, 14. :

Basis of Presentation — Fund Accounting — The operations of the District are accounted for in the fund types

described below:
Proprietary Fund Type — Proprietary funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources
measurement focus. The accounting objectives are a determination of net income, financial position
and changes in cash flow. All assets and liabilities associated with a Proprietary Fund’s activities are
included on its statement of net position, Proprietary Fund type operating statements present increases
(revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net total position. The District has one Proprietary Fund type,
namely the Enterprise Fund. The Enterprise Fund is used for activities that are financed and operated
in a manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that costs
(expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing
basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges.

Fiduciary Fund Type — Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the District in a trustee
capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units and/or other
funds. The District has three Fiduciary Fund types, the Supplemental Water Purchase Program (SWPP)
Fund, the North Valley Regional Recycled Water Program-Refuge Water Supply Program (NVRRWP-
RWSP) Fund, and the California Natural Resources Agency (CNRA-RWSP) Fund. All three Funds are
custodial in nature and do not involve the measurement of results of operations.

i
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NOTE 1:

Del Puerte Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements
February 28, 2022
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus — The basis of accounting determines when transactions and
economic events are reflected in financial statements, and measurement focus identifies which transactions and
events should be recorded.

Proprietary fund types are accounted for on an economic resources measurement focus using the accrual basis
of accounting. Revenues are recorded when they are earned, including unbilled services which are accrued.
Expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred.

The District applies all Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements as well as the
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless
those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASE pronouncements and the State Controller’s Minimum
Audit Requirements for California Special Districts. The District has elected not to apply FASB statements
and interpretations issued subsequent to November 30, 1989,

Use of Estimates — The preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenditures or expenses during the repotting period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Accounts Receivable — The District’s management considers all accounts receivable from water users and
others to be fully collectible. Accordingly, no allowance for doubtful accounts has been recorded in these
financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment — All property, plant and equipment assets are recorded at historical cost.
Depreciation is charged as an expense against operations, and accumulated depreciation is reported on the
Bistrict’s statement of net assets. Depreciation is calculated on the straight-tine method over the useful lives of
the assets, The useful lives for each major class of depreciable fixed assets are as follows:

Office furniture 5-7 years
Tools and equipment 5 years
Vehicles 5 years
Landscaping 15 years
Meters 40 years
Buildings 40 years

Investments — All investments are held with LPL Financial, Fair values were obtained directly from LPL
Financizl. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, the change in the fair value of investments is recorded
in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets.



NOTE 1:

NOTE 2:

Del Puerto Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements
February 28, 2022
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuned)

Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Resources - The District has adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No.
63 (GASB 63), Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and
Net Position. GASB 63 provides financial reporting guidance for deferred outflows of resources, deferred
inflows of resources, and net position in a statement of financial position and related disclosures. It also
identifies net position as the residual of all other elements presented in a statement of financial position, or the
difference between (a) assets and deferred outflows of resources and (b) liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources. As implied above, GASB 63 changes the previous classification of net assets to net position, and
consequently, the statement of net assets to the statement of net position,

Compensated Absences — The District has a vacation policy which allows employees to accrue vacation leave
up to 480 hours with specific approval by management. Upon separation from employment, employees will be
paid their accrued vacation at the current rate of pay. The District has a medical leave policy which allows
employees to accrue medical leave up to a maximum of 240 hours. Upon separation from employment, the
District has no obligation to compensate an employee for unused medical leave, however employees may
convert unused accumulated sick leave (up fo one year) to additional service credit when separation occurs as

the result of a CalPERS eligible retirement. At February 28, 2022, the District’s compensated absences payable
was $113,232,

During the fiscal year ended February 28, 2019, the District adopted GASB Statement 75, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. This Statement requires the Agency

recognize in its financial statements the total OPEB liability for the health benefits provided to retirees, less the
amounts held in an irrevocable trust account.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Applicable state statutes authorize the District to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury agencies, certificates

of deposit, banker’s acceptances, local and municipal bonds, repurchase agreements, insured money market
accounts an¢d commercial paper.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to
changes in market interest rates. The District does not have a formal policy regarding interest rate risk.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that the District will not be able to recover the value of its investments or
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The District does not have a formal policy
regarding custodial credit risk. The California Government Code and the District's investment policy do not
contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or
investments, other than the following provision for deposits: The California Government Code requires that a
financial institution secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an




NOTE 2:

Del Puerto Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements
February 28, 2022
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

undivided collateral poo! held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental
unit). The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total
amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure District
deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits.
With respect to investments, custodial credit risk does not apply to a local government's indirect investment in
securities through the use of mutual funds or investment pools such as LAIF,

Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the
investment, This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization. The District does not have a formal policy regarding credit risk. LAIF does not receive a rating
from a nationally recognized statistical rating organization.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The District has limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one issue beyond that stipulated by the
California Government Code.

The FDIC insured the bank balances up to $250,000 for each bank, except for non-interesi-bearing transaction
accounts at institutions participating in FDIC's Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program, which are provided
with unlimited deposit guarantee,

Cash consists of one checking account, one savings account, 8 money market account and primary certificates
of deposit. When excess funds build up in the interest-bearing checking account, they are transferred to either
the money market account or the savings account to earn a higher interest rate. Funds are transferred to and
from the checking account without penalty. The District holds its checking accounts and savings account in
Patterson, California with a federally insured bank. The District and the bank have contracted for insurance in
excess of the FDIC limit of $250,000. The contract insures deposits of the District to $5,000,000. According to
the confract, the bank maintains eligible securities with market values of at least 10% in excess of the actual
total amount of Jocal agency monies on deposit with the bank. The District monitors this contract as necessaty.

The money market account and the certificates of deposit are held with LPL Financial and are classified as
investments. LPL Financial is an investment company that is a member of the New York Stock Exchange, Inc,
and the Securities Investor Protection Corporation. The certificates of deposit are insured up to an aggregate
maximum amount of $250,000 per certificate. All short-term investments with an original maturity of three
months or less are considered to be cash equivalents. State statutes require that all deposits in financial
institutions be fully collateralized by U.S. government obligations or its agencies and instrumentalities or direct
obligations of California or its agencies and instrumentalities that have a market value of not less than the
principal amount of the deposits. The District’s deposits were fully insured or collateralized as required by the
state statutes at February 28, 2022,



NOTE 3:

NOTE 4:

Del Puerto Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements

February 28, 2022
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

The District invoices its ratepayers for the annual per-acre Water Availability Charge (WAC), West Side San
Joaquin River Watershed Coalition Fee, and a Sustainable Groundwater Management Act GSP Activities fee
on March 1 of each year, These charges become delinquent on March 31, Delinquent charges are subject to lien
under water code section 36729, as well as any other remedies available to the District for collection of

delinquencies, including but not limited to those enforced in accordance with Chapters 4, 5 and 6 of Part 7 of
Division 13 of California Water Code.

As part of the implementation of the North Valley Regional Recycled Water Program (NVRRWP), the District

_collects the costs of water supply made available by the Program through per-acre assessments. These

assessments were billed one-half on January 1 and one-half on June 1, 2021 for the 2021-22 allocation of 6
inches per acre at an estimated rate of $185/AF. Similar to the WAC, these charges are supported by a
Proposition 218 vote of the landowners and are an obligation of all irrigable acreage in the District.

In the 2021-22 fiscal year, the District began invoicing its customers for a Contract Conversion Assessment in
the amount of $25/acre. This assessment will be issued on March 1 of each year through 2034 to collect an
annual amount for the CVP Construction repayment loan payable to CoBank. This assessment is supported by
a Prop 218 vote of the Landowners and is an obligation of any irrigable acreage in the District whose owner
did not elect to pre-pay their fair share.

The District further requires those customers electing annual water service to deposit a Water Cost Prepayment
(WCP) in an amount equal to 25% of the total cost of CVP contract water availabie to that customer for the
given year, with said deposit being applicable to water charges after the first 75% of the supply is both used
and paid for. When an account is established by virtue of the WCP, water is allocated to the account on an

equal-per-share irrigable acre basis based on the current years® available CVP supply, with subsequent actual
water use being billed on a monthly basis.

Unless specified differently under special program guidelines, all charges are due by the last day of the month
follewing invoicing to avoid interruption in service. In addition to water customer accounts receivable, the
District also processes invoicing for miscellaneous items/services. As of February 28, 2022, the District had

$233,536 in water accounts receivable, $6,969 in OPEB Trust Reimbursement receivable, and $2,013,049 in
miscellaneous accounts receivable,

PREPAID CVP CONSTRUCTION COSTS

CVP Facilities

On, November 25, 2020, the District made an carly repayment of its outstanding Central Valley Project
Construction Costs which were estimated to be $14,124,614 as of the USBR 2020 Ratebook Construction
Obligation Schedules, as discounted per that certain Contract between the United States and Del Puerto Water
District Providing for Project Water Service from Delta Division and Facilities Repayment, dated September
28, 2020 Contract No. 14-06-200-922-LTRI1-P. Through a combination of cash funds and CoBank Loan
proceeds, the District achieved the repayment, which would have otherwise been due and payable by year 2030,
and realized other benefits for its ratepayers, including but not limited to a meaningful reduction in the Ag



NOTE 4:

NOTE 5:

Del Puerto Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements
February 28, 2022

PREPAID CVP CONSTRUCTION COSTS (continued)

Water Rate. Immediately subsequent to the payoff, the Districts estimated CVP Construction (excluding the
DMC/CA intertie) were estimated to be $10,831,822, as published in the 2021 Ratebook Construction
Obligation schedules. During 2021, the District received a refund from the USBR on a portion of the overpaid
construction (the “rate” component), which has been set aside in a reserve designated for the Final 2030 CVP
Construction Obligation. The District has recognized the remaining portion of the “overpayment” on these
financials as a current receivable due from Reclamation.

DMC/California Aqueduct Intertie

On Iuly 20, 2005, the District finalized execution of a Contributed Funds Agreement with the Bureau of
Reclamation, which committed its fair share of the funding necessary to construct a physical connection
between the federally owned Delta-Mendota Canal and the State-owned California Aqueduct. In exchange for
its contribution of funds, the District was to receive a commensurate reduction in its total capital repayment
obligation once construction is completed and the facility becomes operational. It was estimated that operation
of the Intertic would produce an average additional yield of 2,583 acre-feet, or a 2% increase in the District’s
annual allocation over time. The District financed its portion of the Intertie construction costs by way of a tax-
exempt loan offered by the Bank of the West in the amount of $1,793,575 over a period of fifteen years at a
fixed rate of 4,25%. In early 2011, the Bureau of Reclamation identified alternate potential funding sources for
the Intertie, which then had the necessary approvals for proceeding with construction. In August 2011, the
district received a refund of a portion of its Contributed Funds, which was used to retire the Bank of the West
obligation. The small remaining portion of the District’s initial contributed funds which had already been spent
by the BOR remained to be credited against the District’s capital obligation once the project was put into service,
which occurred in the Bureau’s fiscal year 2014. After recognizing the WY 2019 portion amortized over a 50-
year repayment period, prepaid intertie construction costs, as of February 28, 2022, totaled $104,480.

As of February 28, 2022, the Current Portion of the Prepaid CVP Construction Costs, and Prepaid DMC/CA
Aqueduct Construction Costs totaled $760,102, and the Non-Current portion totaled $10,745,911.

PREPAID WATER, USBR & SAN LUIS & DELTA - MENDOTA WATER AUTHORITY

As a requirement of its long-term water service contract, the District prepays the United States Bureau of
Reclamation (USBR) twe months in advance for its scheduled CVP water use at the estimated rates published
for the applicable water year. At the same time that this payment is made, the District also reconciles the actual
CVP water use for the prior month to the prepayment previously paid for that month and adjusts the current
payment accordingly.

As arequirement of its multi-year Warren Act contracts, the district prepays the USBR two months in advance
for any non-project supplies scheduled to be conveyed and/or stored in the federal facilities. This prepayment
is reconciled to aciual deliveries as the schedule is updated throughout the water year. Prepaymenis are
categorized as either Prepaid Water — USBR or Prepaid Water — Other, depending on the source supply being
transacted.



NOTE 5:

NOTE 6:

NOTE 7:

Del Puerto Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements
February 28, 2022

PREPAID WATER, USBR & SAN LUIS & DELTA - MENDOTA WATER AUTHORITY (continued)

The District also prepays Delta-Mendota Canal O&M costs to the San Luis & Delia- Mendota Water Authority
(SLDMWA) one moanth in advance for its scheduled water deliveries at estimated rates set by the Water
Authority Board for the applicable water year. At the same time that this payment is made, the District
reconciles the actual water use for the prior month to the prepayment previously paid for that month and adjusts
the current payment accordingly.

As of February 28, 2022, the District had prepaid water costs to the USBR and SLDMWA totaling $1,543,839.

PREPAID WATER, OTHER SOURCES

Due to contractually imposed shortages on its water supply, the District secks to develop an annual Additional
Supplies Pool (the “Pool”) for each water year, which is created by the pooling of other sources of water through
various transfer, banking and exchange agreements, Early in the water year an estimate of the total available
Pool is made, and a per-acre-foot price designed to recover all costs of development of the pool is set by the
Board. The costs of this Annual Additional Supplies Pool are recorded as Prepaid Watetr/Other Sources. Sales
from the Annual Additional Supplies Pool are recorded as Deferred Revenue.

The Pool is closed and reconciled at year-end, or as soon as possible after the Rescheduling period, if any Pool
supplies are rescheduled by the District. Normally, any resultant income from the Annual Additional Supplies
Pool is either rebated to customers who purchased rebate-eligible additional supplies in that year, or set aside
to be used in the development of the next year’s Pool. Any resultant losses would be offset by prior or forecasted
Pool profits or melded into costs of the next year’s Pool. At the close of the Fiscal Year, the District had
$5,724,155 in prepaid 2021-22 pool costs and $1,110,915 in costs associated with the future return of 5,490 AF
of stored supply, for a total invested in Additional Supplies Pool sources of $6,835,070.

In addition to the Annual Additional Supplies Pool, the District incurs costs for the development of the
NVRRWP Supply. These costs are then recorded along with the revenue when these supplies are delivered to
customers, As of February 28, 2022, the District had $1,007,756 in prepaid costs associated with the NVRRWP.

PREPAID EXPENSES

The District prepays certain expenses for future operations, including such items as property & liability
insurance, maintenance confracts on office equipment and the facility, certain association dues and
subscriptions, as well as its annual obligation to the USBR for the Trinity Public Utility District Assessment
and for Replacement Power Cost estimates for supply moved under Warren Act Contracts. Expenses are then

recorded in the appropriate month of service, As of February 28, 2022, the Disfrict had $200,311 in other
prepaid expenses.



Del Puerto Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements
February 28, 2022

NOTE 8: RESTRICTED ASSETS

Restricted assets consisted of the following at February 28, 2022:

Total Designated
Cash $ 2,056,312
Investments 2,305,389
Total $ 4361,700

Designated

Rate Stabilization — United States Bureau of Reclamation and San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority
(SLDMWA) rates fluctuate due to the fact that initial rates are set based on estimated budget expenditures and
system-wide water deliveries. Final rates are not reconciled by agencies until 12 to 18 months after the water
year, has ended. The District attempts to stabilize its rates through use of rate contingency collections in some
water years and rate subsidies in others, based on initial estimates provided by the agencies. As of February 28,
2022, contingency collections and agency final accounting refunds in the amount of $2,155,208 have been
designated for use in maintaining stable District water rates.

Capital Repayment — Under current Bureau rate setting policy, each CVP contractors’ obligation for repaying
the capital costs of constructing the CVP is collected as a component of that contractor’s published annual
estimated water rates based on historical plus projected future deliveries through year 2030. Shortages incurred
since the passage of CVPIA in the early ‘90’s and predicted to continue for the foreseeable future mean less
delivery base across which to spread the capital obligation, leading to predicted higher rates as year 2030 nears.
In Fiscal Year 2012-13, the Board authorized the collection of a rate component on all water deliveries which
would set based on the forecasted deliveries during each water year and designed to collect the “shortfall”
inherent in the USBR’s capital collections. As part of the Contract Conversion process and the related
transaction which accomplished the payoff of the Districts estimated CVP Construction Obligation, $2,203,779
in funds previously collected and for the Capital (Construction) Rate Component of the 2020 Ag water Rate
were refunded to the District, resulting in $2,206,492 in cash and investments designated for CVP Construction
Repayment as of February 28, 2022,



NOTE %:

Del Puerto Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements
February 28, 2022 |
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

-

Property, plant and equipment and related accumulated depreciation consisted of the following at February 28,
2022:

Balance Balance
2/28/2021 Additions Deletions 2/28/2022
Land $ 35,409 $ - 5 - $ 35,409
Buildings and improvements 1,275,850 - - 1,275,850
Meters 255,591 - - 255,591
Office equipment 142,670 26,733 - 169,403
Equipment 83,899 13,133 - 97,032
Vehicles 109,438 117,488 (30,222) 196,704
Total historical cost 1,902,857 157,354 (30,222) 2,029,989
Accumulated depreciation (782,564) (71,046) 30,222 (823,388)
Property, plant, & equipment, net § 1,120,293 $ 86308 3 - $ 1,206,601

Depreciation expense for the year ended February 28, 2022 was $71,046,

NOTE 10: ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

The District records its accounts payable and processes timely payments to its vendors on the 15™ and last day
of each month. As of February 28, 2022, Accounts Payable totaled $905,589.

NOTE 11: ACCRUED EXPENSES AND LIABILITIES

NOTE 12:

The District records accrued liabilities for Auditing, Workers Compensation and various expenditures, as

applicable, in the month the expense was incurred. As of February 28, 2022, Accrued Liabilities related to
these expenditures totaled $1,129,458,

The District also records accrued interest on investments, as applicable, as patt of its accrued liabilitics. As of
February 28, 2022, Accrued Liabilities related to uncarned investment interest totaled $9,420,

CUSTOMER PREPAID WATER TOLLS AND DEFERRED REVENUE

The District receives advance payment from customers who have elected to receive their current year water
allotment, equivalent to 25% of the cost of their water allotment at the beginning of the year, which is applied
toward the last 25% of their water use once the first 75% is both used and paid for. Customer Prepaid Water
Tolls represent instances where, at the end of the water year, a customer has not utilized their full allocated
water supply. As of February 28, 2022, customer prepaid water tolls totaled $626,046.
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CUSTOMER PREPAID WATER TOLLS AND DEFERRED REVENUE (continued)

Tn Januaiy of 2022, the District also collected advance payment for one half of the estimated cost of NVRRWP
supplies to be acquired for the 2022-23 water year. As of February 28, 2022, prepaid NVRRWP tolls totaled
$3,703,244,

Because the 2021-22 Additional Supplies Pool was not able to be closed due to one remaining transaction, the
district held prepayments for undelivered Annual Additional Supplies to be recorded as revenue in 2023. As of
February 28, 2022, this deferred revenue totaled $5,100,075.

LONG TERM DEBT AND CVP CONSTRUCTION PREPAYMENT PAYABLE

The District acquired a loan from CoBank to fund a portion of the early repayment of its outstanding Central
Valley Project Construction Costs, which were estimated to be $14,124,614 as of the USBR FY 2020 Ratebook
Construction Schedules, as discounted per that certain Contract between the United States and Del Puerto Water
District Providing for Project Water Service from Delta Division and Facilities Repayment dated September
28, 2020 Contract No. 14-06-200-922-LTR1-P. By entering into this Debt Obligation, the District achieved the
repayment, which would have otherwise been due and payable by year 2030, and realized other benefits for its
ratepayers, including but not limited to a meaningful reduction in the Ag Water Rate. The outstanding CoBank
Loan Payable amount as of February 28, 2022 was $9,612,104, The Current Portion of the CoBank Loan
Payable totaled $591,241 and the Non-Current portion totaled $9,020,863.

In addition to the loan from CoBank, a portion of the repayment of the Districts estimated outstanding CVP
Construction Obligation was accomplished with funds collected in advance from certain customers who did not
wish to participate in the assessment which would be used to repay the CoBank Loan, As of February 28, 2022,
the current portion of the prepayment to be amortized over 15 years was $110,400 and the Long-Term portion
$1,426,708, for a total obligation of $1,537,108.

PENSION PLAN

Plan 'Description

The District contributes to the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS), an agent multiple-
employer public employee defined benefit pension plan. CalPERS provides retirement and disability benefits,
anmual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefiis to plan members and beneficiaries. CalPERS acts as a
common investment and administrative agent for participating public entities with the State of California.
Benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by state statute and District Policies.

Funding Policy

Benefits from the plan are for both salaried and hourly-rated employees who meet certain eligibility
requirements, and calls for these benefits to be paid to eligible employees at retirement based on age, vears of
service and compensation rates for the highest earnings year during employment. CalPERS retirement laws
changed effective January 1, 2013 creating two classes of benefit groups: classic members and PEPRA
members. The District contributes its share of the pension costs as determined annually by the plan’s actuary,
which as of July 1, 2020 was 11.031% of gross earnings ptus $4,226.09 per month for classic members, and
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NOTE 14: PENSION PLAN (continued)

7.732% plus $149 per month for PEPRA members. These percentages decreased to 10.88% and 7.59%,

respectively, on 7/1/2021. Employees contribute an additional 7% and 6.75% of gross earnings, respectively,
for classic and PEPRA members,

Employees covered by benefit terms: There are currently 6 active participants in the plan, and 2 participants
receiving benefits.

Contributions: The contribution for the period ending February 28, 2022 was $120,218.

At February 28, 2022, the District reported a liability of $334,021 in the Statement of Net Position for its
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2021 and
the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension lability was determined by an actuarial valuation as
of that date. The District’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the District’s
long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all Pension Plan
participants, which was actuarially determined. For the fiscal year ended February 28, 2022, the District
recognized pension expense of $25,566 to reflect the change in the net pension liability during the measurement
period, adjusted for actual confributions and the deferred recognition of changes in investment gain/loss,
actuarial gain/loss, actuarial assumptions or method, and plan benefits.

Actuarial assumptions

Total pension liability represents the portion of the actuarial present value of projected benefit payments
attributable to past periods of service for current and inactive employees, The total pension liability in the June
30, 2021 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions:

* Discount Rate/Rate of Return — 7%, net of investment expense

+ Inflation Rate — 2,5%

*  Salary increases — Vaties by Entry Age and Service Years -up to 3%

*  Payroll Growth —2.75%%

* Post-Retirement Mortality — Derived using Dec 2017 CalPERS Experience Study

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments (7.15%) was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return
by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation, The target allocation and best
estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table: |
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Asset Class Assumed Asset Real Return Real Return

Allocation Years 1024 Years 11434
Public Equity 50.0% 4.8% 6.0%
Fixed Income 28.00 1.00 2.62
Inflation Assets 0.00 0.77 1.81
Private Equity 8.00 6.30 7.23
Real Assets 13.00 3.75 4.93
Liquidity 1.00 .00 -0.92

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15 percent. The projection of cash flows
used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions will be made at the current contribution
rate and that contributions from the District will be made at contractually required rates, as actuarially
determined, Based on those assumptions, the pension fund’s fiduciary net position was projected {o be available
to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. In theory, the discount
rate may differ from the long-term expected rate of return discussed previously. However, based on the
projected availability of the pension fund’s fiduciary net position, the discount rate is equal to the long-term
expected rate of return on pension plan investments, and was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments
to determine the total pension liability,

Sensitivity of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were
calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (6.15%) or 1 percentage point higher (8.15%)
than the current rate:

1% Decrease  Discount Rate 1% Increase
6.15% 7.15% 8.15%

District's proportionate share of the
net pension plan liability $ 777,650 § 334021 § -32,721

Detailed information about the pension fund’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued
CALPERS comprehensive annual financial report, which may be obtained by contacting PERS.

Deferred OQutflow/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, it is not enough that revenue is earned; it must also be available
to finance expenditures of the current period. Governmental! funds will therefore include deferred inflows of
resources for amounts that have been earned but are not available to finance expenditures in the current period.
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Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 63, the District recognized deferred outflows and inflows of resources in the
Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Statements. These’ items are a consumption of net position by the
District that is applicable to a future reporting period.

The first item is related to pensions, that being the PERS premiums for the PERS 2022 fiscal year. These were
the employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date of June 30, 2021, totaling $82,444, which will
be recognized in a subsequent reporting period, February 28, 2023,

The District is also reporting deferred outflows of resources relating to differences between projected and actual
investment earnings, change in employer proportions, and differences between the employer’s contributions

and their proportionate share of contributions. The total of these amounts at year-end were $77,418 and they
will be amortized over a 3.8 year period.

The District also recognized deferred inflows of resources in the Government-Wide Financial Statements,
These are related to differences between expected and actual experience, changes of assumptions, and
differences between employer’s contributions and the District’s proportionate share of contributions. This
amount totals $308,163 and will be amortized over a 3.8 year period.

The following graph represents the deferred inflows and outflows by category:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows -
of Resources of Resources

Change in assumptions $ - $ -
Ditferences in expected and actual

expetience . 37.456 -
Differences in projected and actual

earnings on investments . 291,584
Differences in Proportions 35,962 -
Differences in actual and proportionate

share of contributions - 16,579
Deferred contributions 82,444 -

Totals $ 159,862 $ 308,163
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NOTE 14: PENSION PLAN (continued)

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions
(net, excepting deferred contributions) ali will be recognized as pension expense as follows:

Year Ending

February 28/29,
2023 $  (43,218)
2024 (47,951)
2025 (58,996)
2026 (80,580)
2027 -

Total $ (230,745)

NOTE 15: POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSION BENEFITS

In addition fo pension benefits, the District also provides post-employment health care insurance(s)
(medical/dental/vision) to eligible retirees.

Access to Coverage

Medical coverage is currently provided through CalPERS as permitted under the Public Employee’s Medical
and Hospital Care Act (PEMHCA). This coverage requires the employee to satisfy the requirements for
retirement under CalPERS: either (a) attainment of age 50 {age 52, if a miscellaneous employee under new to
PERS on or after January 1, 2013) with 5 years of State or public agency service or (b} an approved disability
retirement. The employee must begin his or her pension benefit within 120 days of terminating employment
with the District to be eligible to continue medical coverage through the District and be entitled to the employer
subsidy described below, excepting employees covered by the PEMHCA Vesting Resolution who work at least
20 years for the District, who are not subject to this requirement.

Once eligible, a retiree or survivor may enroll within 60 days of retirement or during any future open enrollment
period. Coverage may be continued at the retiree’s option for his or her lifetime. A surviving spouse and other
eligible dependents may also continue coverage.

Benefits provided

Under the CalPERS medical program, the District must contribute toward the cost of retiree medical coverage
for the retiree’s lifetime or until coverage is discontinued. The District currently maintains two PEMHCA
resolutions defining the District’s contribution toward retiree medical plan premiums. The resolutions apply
based on an employee’s hire date as follows:
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NOTE 15: POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSION BENEFITS (continued)

*  Employees hired before February 1, 2015: The District contributes 100% of the medical premium for
employees and retirees and 75% of the premium for any covered dependents. The surviving spouse of

a deceased retiree will receive 100% of the medical premium.

* Employees hired after February 1, 2015: Those who retire from the District meeting the eligibility
requirements described above under “Access to Coverage”, but with less than 5 years of District service
and less than 10 years of PERS service may continue the medical coverage at their own expense.

Subsidy for the 104/90 Formula

Retiree Retiree + 1 Retiree + 2
$767.00 $1.461.00 $1,868.00

Note: The “100/90 formula” provides that the District pay up to a maximum of 100% of the weighted average
of the health benefits plan premium for retirees and 90% of the weighted average of additional premiums

required for the enrollment of eligible dependents.

The Vesting percentage applied to the “100/90 formula” caps for service retirements are shown in the chart

below:

Years of Qualifying Service Vested Percent | Years of Qualifying Service | Vested Percent
Less than 10 0% 15 75%
10 0% 16 80%
1l 35% 17 85%
12 60% 18 90%
13 65% 19 3%
14 70% 20 or more 100%

Note that for employees who qualify for a disability retirement, the vesting percentage does not apply in
determining the amount of the benefit payable and that CalPERS applies the vesting percent to the 100/90
formula caps and not the retiree’s actual premium, if less. Thus, for example, a retiree with 15 years of CalPERS
membership (including 5 with the District} could receive more than 75% of his or her premium paid; after the
retiree is covered by Medicare, this could increase to 100% of the premium, depending on the medical plan

selected.



Del Puerto Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements
February 28, 2022
NOTE 15: POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSION BENEFITS (continued)
Dental and vision insurance is also provided for qualifying retirees, as follows:

s Employees hired before February 1, 2015 The District contributes 100% of the dental and vision
premium for the retiree and 75% of the premium for any covered dependents.

*  Employees hired on or after February 1, 2015 Those who retire from the with at least 10 year of
service are eligible for (a) 100% of the dental and vision premium for the retiree and 75% of the
premium for any covered dependents, multiplied by (b) the vested percent, determined from the table
shown above.

Dental and vision coverage ends upon the retiree’s death.

Funding Policy

While the District’s Board of Directors may amend its OPEB Funding Policy, it has thus far opted to contribute
100% or more of the Actuarial Determined Contributions (ADC) each year. The ADC represents a level of
funding that if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal costs each ear and amortize any unfunded
actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over an open 30-year period. Contributions made to Californig
Employees Retirement Benefit Trust (CERBT) for the fiscal year ended February 28, 2022 totaled $34,493.

Total OPEB liability

The District’s total OPEB liability was measured as of February 29, 2021, and was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of that date.

Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing employee benefit plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts
and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events over the plan lifetime. Examples include
agsumptions about future employment, mortality and the health cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the
funded results are compare with past expectations and new estimates are made in the future. The actuarial
methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term velatility
in actuariat accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the
calculations.

The February 29, 2021 actuarial valuation used the Entry Age Normal Cost Method. Under this method, the
projected benefits of each individual included in the valuation is allocated on a level percent-of-pay over the
earning or service of the individual between entry age and assumed exit age(s). The portion of the Actuarial
Percent Value allocated to a valuation year is called the Normal Cost; the portion allocated to all prior years is
the Actuarial Accrued Liability. The Entry Age Normal Cost Method is the only method permitted for financial
reporting purposes under GASB 75.
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The total OPEB liability in the February 29, 2021, actuarial valuation was determined using the following
actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise

specified:
Inflation 2.5%
Salary increases 3.00%
Medical cost trend 4.-5.4% increases
Discount rate 6.55%

Demographic actuarial assumptions were those in the June 30, 2021 valuation of the retirement plans
covering the District’s employees (classic & PEPRA} which are based on the CalPERS 2017 experience
study using data from 1997 to 2015, with the exception of Mortality Improvement, which were those
published by the 2017 study as adjusted to back out 15 years of Scale MP 2020 to Central Year 2015 (results
in shorter retiree life expectancy).

Sensitivity of the District’s Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the Disirict’s total OPEB liability

would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage poinf lower or | percentage point higher
than the current discount rate:

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
5.55% 6.55% 7.55%

Distriot's Net OPEB liability $  (187,619) $(282,975) § (360,616)

Sensitivity of the District’s Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healtheare Cost Trend Rates

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District’s total OPEB liability
would be if it were calculated using healthcare trend rates that is 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point
higher than the current healthcare trend rate:

Current
1% Decrease Trend Rate 1% Increase
District's Net OPEB liability $ (375,188) $(282,975) $ (165,273)




Del Puerto Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements
February 28, 2022

NOTE 15: POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSION BENEFITS (continued)

OPEB expense and Deferred Qutflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
OPEB

For the year ended February 28, 2022, the District recognized OPEB expense of $13,682. OPEB expense
represents the change in the net OPEB Hability during the measurement period, adjusted for actual contributions
and the deferred recognition of changes in investment gain/loss and actuarial assumptions.

AtFebruary 28, 2022, the District reported deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB
from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Change in assumptions $ 29450 h) 6,118
Differences in expected and actual experience - 40,833
Differences in projected and actual earning on
invesiments - 59,293
Deferred contributions . 34,671 -
Totals $ 64,121 $ 106,244

The deferred contributions will be recognized in the subsequent measurement period {February 28, 2023).
The temainder of the amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Year Ending

February 28/29,
2023 $ (14,796)
2024 (12,982)
2025 (24,447)
2026 (12,216)
2027 (1,749)

Therafter (10,604)
Total $ (76,794)
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NOTE 16: ECONOMIC DEPENDENCIES

NOTE 17:

NOTE 18:

The District was organized to contract for and administer delivery of water supplies to landowners within the
geographical boundaries of the District. Therefore, the District’s existence relies exclusively on the continuing
need for water supplies by landowners within the District, and the District’s ability to procure and provide such
supplies. Because various regulatory and judicial proceedings may impact the guarantees of water available to
the District in the future, management believes that the impact of severe or chronic water shortages could have
a material, financial or operating effect on the District.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Insurance Coverage and Risk Management — The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts;
theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters,
The District is covered under commercial insurance policies for workers’ compensation, automobile, general
Hability and other business-related coverage. Expenditures and claims in excess of the District’s deductible for
related insurance coverage are recognized when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the
loss can be reasonably estimated. In determining claims, events that might create claims, but for which none
have been reported, are considered. The District is unaware of any actual or potential claims that would
materially affect its financial condition, Therefore, no provision has been recorded.

SUPPLEMENTAL WATER PURCHASE PROGRAM

During 2003, the District completed the Supplemental Water Purchase Program (“SWPP” or the “Program™),

The cost of this $2,192,080 Program was financed through the issuance of 25-year Certificates of Participation
generating $2,535,000, including costs of issuance and a reserve fund deposit requirement for the one-time
purchase of 4,136 acre-feet of annual water entitlement from certain property owners within the District who
agreed to permanently remove their land from service. This entitlement was used to increase the allocation to
certain parcels of land within the District in exchange for participant landowners annually paying the costs of
the Program, The District, which offered all landowners in the District the opportunity to participate in the
Program, eventually entered into Water Supply Contracts with 21 interested property owners.

Pursuant to these Water Supply Contracts, Program participants agreed to pay capital charges calculated to
repay the principal and associated interest costs of the Program along with any other charges allocated to them
pro-rata to their share of Program participation. The District, pursuant to the terms of an installment purchase
contract, pledged these capital charges as security for the installment payments of principal and interest on bond
certificates, which were payable October 1 and April 1 of each year, beginning October 1, 2003,

To provide funds for the installment payments in the event of a delinquent payment of capital charges, the
District established a reserve fund from the proceeds of the certificates of participation and a pledged fund from
a one- time deposit from the participants. The reserve fund is maintained at the lesser of (1) 10% of the originat
principal amount of principal payments due under the instaliment purchase contract, (2) an amount equal to the
maximum annual installment payment payable in a certificate year by the District between such dates of
calculation and the expiration of the installment purchase contract, or {3) 125% of the average annual
installment payment, including interest thereon, payable in a certificate year by the Disirict,

Further, California Water Code provides that the recorded water supply contracts constitute a priority lien
against the benefiting parcels.
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In early 2012, favorable market conditions led district staff to explote refunding of the SWPP bonds in favor of
a better financing option, and on October 1, 2012, the District completed an issuance of 2012 Certificates of
Participation in the amount of $1,655,000 at 4.25% interest. All Certificates were purchased by a single
beneficiary, Rabobank, N.A. Similar to the original series 2003A bonds, the District pledged capital charges to
be paid by program participants as security for the installment payments, and elected to retain the balance of
the original pledged fund, less refunds to program participants electing payoff of their obligation as part of the
transaction, as secutity for the installment payments in the event of a participant delinquency. The 2012
transaction resulted in an opportunity for participants to prepay their original obligations, of which three elected
to do, reducing the total required funding by $124,457. In addition, the transaction resulted in a one-year
reduction in the repayment period, and interest rate savings estimated to be approximately $245,000 over the
remaining life of the issue. The obligation on the refunded bonds will be fully repaid by April 2028,

The District accounts for this program as a {fiduciary fund type, specifically as an agency fund. As of February
28, 2022, the District had $146,780 included in cash, receivables and investments, and an accrued liability of
$146,780 relating to the Program.

NVRRWP-RWSP FUND

On August 12, 2016, the District executed a long-term agreement with the United States Bureau of Reclamation
for the exchange and purchase of North Valley Regional Recycled Water Program Water, which expires on
February 28, 2060. Per the agreement, Program Water made available annually by the District at the NVRRWP
discharge structure on the Delta-Mendota Canal will be provided to the Refuge Water Supplemental Program
(“RWSP”) in the form of either direct purchase (20% of the total) or exchange (80% of the total exchanged at
a 1:10 to 1 ratio), under specified terms and conditions. Pursuant to Article 4e of the agreement, $10,000,000
dollars was received in September 2016 by the District from the RWSP for the purchase of program water
supplies, an additional $12,300,000 dollars was received in June 2017, and a final $2,700,000 in October 2017,
for a total prepayment of $25,000,000. During the 2021-22 Fiscal Year, the USBR contributed an additional
$1,000,000 under an amendment to the agreement, The District accounts for this transaction as a fiduciary fund
type, specifically as a second agency fund. As of February 28, 2022, the District held $24,992,755 included in
cash, investment interest receivable, and invesiments, and reports a corresponding liability for the same amount
relating to the Fund.

CNRA-RWSP FUND

On December 20, 2018, the District executed a grant agreement with the California Natural Resources Agency
(CNRA) for the acquisition of North Valley Regional Recycled Water Program Water. Per the grant agreement,
funding was made available for supplies to be offered annually by the District to the Refuge Water Supply
Program (“RWSP”) per the specified terms of the Agreement for The Exchange and Purchase of North Valley
Regional Recycled Water Program Water. Pursuant to the CNRA grant agreement, a total prepayment of
$26,695,480 dollars was received in June 2019 by the District expressly to fund $23,095,480 in future Program
Water acquisition and $3,600,000 for O&M costs related to the RWSP’s current acquisition of Program Water
paid for by the NVRRWP-RWSP funds. The District accounts for this transaction as a fiduciary fund type,
specifically as a third agency fund. As of February 28, 2022, the District held $26,202,120 included in cash,
investment interest receivable, and investments, and reports a corresponding liability for the same amount
relating to the Fund.
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FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The District complies with Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) No. 820, Fair Value Measurements. ASC
820 fair value establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value
measurements. ASC 820 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. ASC 820 establishes a fair value hierarchy
which requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs
when measuring fair value. The standard describes three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value,
Level 1 is defined below as:

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value on a

recurring basis and recognized in the District’s balance sheets, as well as the classification pursuant to the
valuation hierarchy.,

Financial Instruments: Where quoted market prices are available in an active market, investments are
classified within Leven of the valuation hierarchy. Level 1 instruments include a variety of financial instruments
as listed below. There are no Level 2 or Level 3 types within the balance sheet of the District. The following

table summarizes the financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring basis in accordance with ASC
820 as of February 28, 2022:

Fair Value Level 1
Money market securities $ 5,637,068 $ 5,637,068
Certificates of deposit 19,970,547 19,970,547
Municipal Bonds 27,807,469 27,807,469
Government securities 2,918,448 2,918,448

Totals of financial instruments $ 56,333,532 $ 56,333,532

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Events have been reviewed through September 26, 2022, the date the financial statements were available
for issuance.
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2022 2021 2020 2019

Service cost $ 40,848 3 30913 $ 28,664 32,526
Interest 36,868 35,286 32,616 29671
Dlﬂ'cljences between expected and actual ) (30428) . (30959)
experience
Changes of assumplions - (7,648) 12,464 40,082
Net mvesiment income (104,546} (103,132) 14,065 (48,504)
Employer contributions {33,423} (31,062) (38465) (26,428)
Administrative expenses 659 601 340 527
Net change in total OPEB liability 59,594
Total OPEB Iability - beginning (223381}
Total OPEB fiability - ending §  (282.975) $  (223381) $ {17910 (167,795
Covered-employee payroll $ 618,148 $ 498958 $ 459386 437,670
Total OPEB liability as a percentage of 45.7%% 41279 25.66% 3834%
covered payroll

* The first year of implementation was February 28, 2019. A ten-year history will

be presented as the years accumulate.
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Last 10 Fisca) Years*;

Y 2016 FY 11 FY 1018 FY 2019 FY 2020 FY 2021
Districk's propariion of the nel pention
tinbility 0.0148300% 001616000 0.0134990% 0. 1503500% 1L0I65500% 00175910%
Districl’s proportionate shane of the nel ’ :
pension liability . 5 517,245 5 603,400 S 584,119 5 642,133 s 898,501 $ 33401
District’s covered emplayed payroll during
mcasueement period 395,740 435,546 431,861 466,277 545,338 627,610
Diisuict's proportionate share of the et -
pension lebiity as a percentage ol its
covercd-employes paymll C10I0% 138.34% 13526% 137.71% 128,07% 5.971%
Plan Fiduclary net position as 8 percenlage
af the totsipension lability TIE% 76.38% I8 18% TR 6% 90,06%
CALPERS - Schedule of Dintrict Conib
Last 10 Fiscal Years*:

FY 3016 FY 2017 FY 2018 TV 2m9 Y 2020 FY 202
A ially d ined tbuts $ 0360 % 42,158 s 37,058 H 86,724 $ 105,631 H 120,218
Tota] agtusi conitbution 30,360 42,158 371,258 86,724 105,631 120,218
Contribution defieiency {excesa} g - 5 - 5 - 5 - 3 - $ -
District’s covered-¢rployee payrolf 5 395,740 435,846 $431,861 $498,958 $618,161 $692,037
Coniributions as & percentage of covered
employee payrall 167% 951% B.63% 17.38% 1749% 1737%

* The flrst year of implementation was June 30, 2016 A ten-year history will be |

ted a5 the yean
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VIL A

JWT & Associates, LLP

A Certified Public Accountancy Limited Liability Partnership
1111 East Herndon Avenue, Suite 211, Fresno, California 93720
Voice: (559) 431-7708 Fax: (559) 431-7685 Email: rjctepatd aol.com

Board of Directors
Del Puerto Water District
Patterson, California

We have audited the financial statements of the Dep Puerto Water District (the District) for the year ended February
28,2022, have issued our report thereon dated September 26, 2022. Professional standards require that we provide
you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards, as well as certain
information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information to you
within the contents of this letter dated September 26, 2022. Professional standards also require that we communicate
to you other information as noted below related to our audit:

OUR RESPONSIBILITIES

Our Responsibility under U. S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards - As stated in our engagement letter, our
responsibility, as described by professional standards, is to express an opinion about whether the financial statements
prepared by management with your oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U. S.
generally accepted accounting principles. Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve you or management
of your responsibilities. Our responsibility is to plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance that the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the District as of February 28, 2022, in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the District's internal
control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
District's internal control. Such considerations were solely for the purpose of determining our audit procedures and
not to provide any assurance concerning such internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the District's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of an entity's financial statements will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described above and was not designed to identify
all deficiencies in internal control that might be considered deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material
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weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses, as
defined above.

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit - We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing
previously communicated to management. Planning was performed in Tuly 2022 and audit fieldwork was performed
in August through September, 2022,

SIGNIFICANT AUDIT FINDINGS

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices - Management has the responsibility for selection and use of appropriate
accounting policies. In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the
appropriateness of accounting policies and their application. The significant accounting policies used by the District
are described in Note A of the financial statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the application
of existing policies were not changed during the period of March 1 through February 28, 2022. We noted no
transactions entered into by the District during the year that were both significant and unusual, and of which, under
professional standards, we are required to inform you, or transactions for which there is a lack of authoritative
guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper
period.

Accounting Estimates - Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by
management and are based on management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and
assumptions about future events, as well as current judgments. Certain accounting estimates arc particularly sensitive
because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting
them may differ significantly from management's current judgments. In our opinion, there were no areas within the
audit requiring significant accounting estimates.

Financial Statement Disclosures - Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their
significance to financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures, in our opinion, affecting the financial
statements are the disclosures related to revenues and concentrations of credit risk.

Significant Audit Adjustments - For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a significant audit
adjustment as a proposed correction of the financial statements that in our judgment, may not have been detected
¢xcept through our auditing procedures. There were no significant audit adjustments for the audit period.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements - Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely
misstatements noted during the audit, other than those that are trivial and insignificant, and communicate them to the
appropriate level of management. We are pleased to report that there were no significant misstatements.

Disagreement with Management or Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit - For purposes of this letter,
professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter, whether or not resolved to our
satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter that could be significant to the financial
statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our
audit. In addition, we are pleased to report that we encountered no difficulties in dealing with management in
performing the audit and were very pleased with their cooperation which helped to greatly expedite the audit process.

Management Representation - We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the
management representation letter dated September 26, 2022,
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Other Audit Findings or Issues - We generally discuss a variety of accounting matters, including the application of
accounting principles and standards, with management each year prior to retention as the District’s auditors,
However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were
not a condition to our retention as your auditors.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants - In some cases, management may decide to
consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion™ on
certain situations. If a consultant involves application of an accounting principle to the District’s financial statements
or a determination of the type of auditors” opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional
standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts.
To the best of our knowledge, management has not consulted with or obtained opinions from other independent
accountants during the past year that are subject to the requirements of AU section 543.

Restriction on Use - This information is intended solely for the use of the Finance Committee, Board of Directors,
and management of the District and is not intended to be and should not be, used by anyone other than the specified

parties.

Sincerely,

QW7 & rssociates, LLP

Fresno, California
September 26, 2022
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% Woodard «Curran

MASTER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
STANDARD TERMS & CONDITIONS

The following Standard Terms and Conditions, together with the attached scope of services shown on page 11, dated October 7,
2022 (the "Services"), constitute the terms of this agreement for professional and/or engineering services ("Agreement”) between
Woodard & Curran, Inc. (referred to herein as "Consultant”), with an address of 2175 N. California Blvd, Suite 315, Walnut Creek, CA
94596, and Del Puerto Water District (“Client”), with an address of 17840 Ward Avenue, Patterson, CA 95363, with respect to the
performance of the Services and any additional or future agreed upon scopes of services that reference and incorporate this
Agreement. The parties shall be individually and collectively referred to herein respectively as a "Party” or the “Parties”.

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Client to contract with the Consultant for the Services; and Consultant desires to perform the Services.

NOW THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as follows:
1.The Services. Consultant shall perform the Services described in the attached proposal.

1.1 Assumptions. The Consultant’s Services and the compensation are conditioned upon, and are subject to, the assumptions
set forth in the attached proposal.

1.2 Change in Scope of Services. Client may, at any time, by written order, request changes to the scope of Services or work to
be performed. If the scope of Services is changed in a manner that will increase or decrease Consultant's costs or the time

required to perform the Services under this Agreement, there will be an equitable adjustment to this Agreement that must
be signed by both parties.

2. Consultant’s Responsibilities

2.1 Consultant shall be responsible for the following:
2.1.1 Consultant will perform all work in accordance with the scope of Services set forth in the attached proposal.

212 Consultant will perform all work in a professional manner that is consistent with other professionals performing
similar work in the geographic area at the time services are rendered. No warranty, express or implied, is made or intended

by Consultant’s undertaking herein or its performance of services, and it is agreed that Consultant is not a fiduciary or
municipal advisor to the Client.

2.1.3 Consultant shall make reasonable professional efforts to comply with all applicable laws and regulations applicable
to Consultant's performance of the Services.

214 Consultant shall assign a project manager to act as Consultant's representative with respect to the Services to be
rendered under this Agreement.

2.1.5  Consultant shall have and maintain all applicable professional licenses and permits required to perform the
Services.

2.1.6 When providing technology-based services, Consultant shall maintain a data-security program that is consistent
with industry standards, and will use processes and tools readily available in the marketplace. The parties recognize that due
to constant advancements and rapidly changing risks inherent in the field of data technology, which are beyond the control

of Consultant and Client, as long as Consultant observes the standard of care, Consultant is not responsible for any damages,
claims, incidents pertaining to said data-security program.

3. Client’s Responsibilities

3.1 Client shall do the following in a timely manner so as not to delay the services of Consultant:

304 Designate in writing a person to act as Client's representative with respect to the Services to be rendered under
this Agreement. Such person shall have complete authority to transmit instructions, receive information, and interpret and
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define Client's policies and decisions with respect to Consultant’s Services. Such person shall have complete authority to
bind Client financially with respect to the payment of the Services to be rendered under this Agreement.

31.2  Provide all criteria and full information as to Client's requirements for the project relative to the scope of Services
{the “Project"), including design objectives and constraints, performance requirements, and any budgetary limitations; and
furnish copies of all design and construction standards which Client will require to be included in any drawings and
specifications.

313 Provide Consultant with all available information pertinent to the Project including previous reports and any other
documents and data relative to design or construction of the Project, all of which Consultant shall be entitled to use and
rely upon with respect to the accuracy and completeness thereof, in performing the Services under this Agreement.

3.14  Examine all studies, reports, sketches, drawings, specifications, proposals and other documents presented by
Consultant; and provide written comments within a reasonable time so as not to delay the Services of Consultant.

315  Give prompt written notice to Consultant whenever Client observes or otherwise becomes aware of any
development that may affect the Services or timing of the Services.

3.1.6  Ensure Consultant, its agents and representatives have safe access to the Project site, buildings thereon, and other
locations as required to perform the Services.

317 If applicable, retain its own Independent Registered Municipal Advisor ("IRMA”) pursuant to the Municipal Advisor
Rule of the Securities and Exchange Commission, and rely upan such advisor, it being the understanding that Consultant is
not providing the services of an IRMA.,

4, Subcontracts

4.1

42

If requested by Client, the Consultant will recommend that the Client engage the services of laboratories, testing services,
subconsultants, or third parties in connection with the Project. Payment to these third parties will be made directly by the
Client and the Consultant is not responsible for the Client’s use of such third parties or far such third parties’ means and
methods and will not be liable for their errors or omissions.

In the alternative, Consultant may subcontract any portion of the Services to a subcontractor, and the Cansultant will add a
10% surcharge on invoices paid directly by the Consultant for laboratories, testing services, subconsultants, or other third-
parties, and that surcharge will be reflected on Consultant’s monthly invaices submitted to Client.

5.Billing and Payment

5.1

52

53

Client shall pay Consultant in accordance with the payment metheds, rates, and charges set forth in the scope of Services
set forth in the proposal or otherwise agreed upon. Consultant will submit monthly invoices for services rendered and
expenses incurred during the previous period.

Payment will be due upon receipt of Consultant’s invoice. Payments due Consultant and unpaid under the terms of this
Agreement shall bear interest from thirty (30) days after the date payment is due at the rate of one and one half {1.5) percent
per manth and as permitted by applicable local law until paid in full. In the event that Consultant is compelled to take action
to collect past due payments, the Client will reimburse Consultant for all costs and expenses of collection including, without
limitation, all court costs and reasonable attorney's fees and costs.

If applicable, Reimbursable Expenses include actual expenditures made by Consultant, inciuding, but not limited to:

53.1 transportation and living expenses incurred in connection with travel on behalf of the Client;

53.2 overnight or priority postage and costs for special handling of documents;

533 renderings and models requested by the Client;
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534 expense of overtime work requiring higher than regular rates;

53.5 automobile expenses for personal vehicles at the prevailing Internal Revenue Service (IRS) reimbursement rate,

plus toll charges, for travel in conduct of the work, or rental of vehicles plus gasoline and toll charges for traveling to conduct
the work;

5.3.6 use of company field vehicle will be charged according to Consultant's current rates;

537 charges for materials and equipment provided directly by Consultant will be billed according to Consultant's
current rates;

53.8 purchase or rental of specialized equipment and other supplies necessary to conduct the work;
53.9 computer, drafting, typing and other services or labar provided by outside contract personnel or vendors,

54 If applicable, Miscellaneous Direct Expenses will be billed to the Client's project{s} each month at 3% {or as otherwise set
forth in the scope of Services) of the current month's labor fee {including project contract labor fee) to compensate

Consultant for expenditures for miscellaneous administrative costs such as production and communicaiion/technological
expenses incurred on the Client’s project(s).

5.5 If the Project is suspended or abandoned in whole or part, Consultant shall be compensated for all services performed prior
to recelpt of written notice from the Client of such suspension or abandonment, together with Reimbursable Expenses and
Miscellaneous Direct Expenses then due plus Project closeout costs actuatly incurred. If the Project is resumed after being

suspended for more than three (3) months, Consultant’s compensation shall be equitably adjusted between the Client and
Consultant.

5.6 Mo deductions shall be made from Consultant's compensation on account of sums withheld from payments to contractors,
nor shall payment to Consultant be contingent upon financing arrangements or receipt of payment from any third party.

5.7 If the Client fails to make payment when due Consultant for services, Reimbursable Expenses, or Miscellaneous Direct
Expenses, Consultant may, upon seven days' written notice to Client, suspend performance of the Services under this
Agreement. Unless payment in full is received by Consultant within seven days of the date of the notice, the suspension
shall take effect without further notice. In the event of a suspension of Services, Consultant shall have no fiability to Client
for delay or damage caused to Client or others because of such suspension of Services.

5.8 If Client objects to all or part of any invoice, Client shalt notify Consultant in writing within two weeks of the date of the
invoice, and shall pay the portion of the invoice in accordance with Paragraph 5.2. Provided that an objection is made in
good faith, the parties shall immediately make every effort to settle the disputed portion of the invoice. If the dispute is

resclved in favor of Consultant, interest shall accrue on the unpaid portion of the invoice in accordance with Section 5.2 of
this Agreement.

5.9 If circumstances or conditions not originally contemplated or known to Consultant are revealed and affect the Services,
compensation, schedule, allocation of risks or other material terms of this Agreement, Consultant shall be entitled to an
appropriate adjustment in its schedule, compensation or other terms of the Agreement in accordance with its standard
rates. Changed conditions include, but are not limited to, the following: (i) change in the instructions or approvals given by
Client that necessitate revisions in the instrirments of service; (i) decisions of the Client not rendered in a timely manner; (iii)
significant change in the Project including, but not limited to, size, quality, complexity, Client's schedule or budget, or
procurement method; (iv) failure of performance on the part of the Client or the Client’s consultants or contractors; (v)
revision of documents (drawings and/or specifications) to reflect construction cost modifications; (vi) modifications to any
construction phase drawings and specifications due te changes in pragram, size, quality, complexity, schedule, construction
cost, financing, or method of bidding; (vii} additional program, feasibility or planning studies for this or other project sites;

or {vili) enactment or revision of codes, laws or regulations or official interpretations which necessitate changes to the
Services.
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6. Ownership and Use of Documents

6.1

6.2

All documents including drawings and specifications prepared or furnished by Consultant (and Consultant’s subcontractars
and subconsultants) pursuant to this Agreement are instruments of service in respect to the Project and Consultant shall
retain an ownership and property interest therein whether or not the Project is completed. Client may take and retain copies
for information and reference in connection with the use and accupancy of the Project by Client; however, such documents
are not intended nor represented to be suitable for reuse by Client or others on extensions of the Project or on any other
project. Any reuse without written verification or adaptation by Consultant for the specific purpose intended will be at
Client's sole risk and without liability or legal exposure to Consultant or to Consultant’s independent professional associates,
subcontractors and consultants, and Client shall defend and indemnify Consultant from all claims, damages, losses and
expenses including attorney's fees arising out of or resulting therefrom. Any verification or adaptation will entitle Consultant
to further compensation rates to be agreed upon by Client and Consultant.

Submission or distribution to meet official regulatory requirements or for other purposes in connection with the Project is
not to be construed as publication in derogation of Consultant’s rights under this section.

7.Limitation of Liability

7.1

7.2

The total liability, in the aggregate, of Consultant and Consultant’s affiliates, subsidiaries, parent, officers, directors,
employees, agents, subcontractors and subconsultants, and any of them, to Client and any one claiming by, through or
under Client, for any and all injuries, claims, losses, expenses, or damages whatsoever arising out of or in any way related to
Consultant’s Services, the Project or this Agreement, from any cause or causes whatsoever shall not exceed the greater of
two times the fee for the applicable Services or the total insurance proceeds paid on behalf of or to Consultant by
Consultant’s insurers in settlement or satisfaction of Client's claims under Cansultant's applicable insurance policies subject
to the minimum stated policy limits set forth herein. This limitation shall apply regardless of available insurance coverage,
cause(s) or theories of liability, including but not limited to, the negligence, errors, omissions, strict liability, breach of
contract, or breach of warranty of Consultant or Consultant's affiliates, subsidiaries, parent, officers, directors, employees,
agents or subcontractors or subconsultants, or any of them. Client may negotiate a higher limitation for additional
consideration.

Neither Party shall be responsible or held liable to the other for special, punitive, exemplary, indirect, incidental or
consequential damages, including, but not limited to, loss of profit, loss of investment, loss of product, business interruption,
or liability for loss of use of facilities or Client’s existing property, however the same may be caused.

8.Insurance

8.1

Consultant is protected by Workers' Compensation Insurance in statutory amounts; General Liability Insurance of $1,000,000
per occurrence and $2,000,000 in the aggregate; and Professional Liability Insurance of $1,000,000 per claim and in the
aggregate. Consultant will furnish client a certificate of insurance, upon written request, evidencing such coverage and limits,
and list Client as a certificate holder. The Client and Consultant waive all of their and their respective insurers' rights of
subrogation against each other to the extent any loss is covered by their applicable insurance policies. Furthermore, the
Client shall require that any of its retained subcontractors list the Consultant as an additional insured on their applicable
insurance policies, and that such subcontractors and their insurers waive their rights of subrogation against Consultant.

9. Indemnification Hold Harmless

9.1

9.2

Consultant agrees to indemnify and hold Client, its affiliates, subsidiaries, directors, shareholders, and employees harmless
from and against all third-party claims resulting in a judgment, or damages (“Losses”) to the proportionate extent such
Losses are caused by Consultant's negligent acts or negligent omissions.

Client agrees to indemnify and hold Consultant, its affiliates, subsidiaries, directors, shareholders, and employees harmless
from and against all third-party claims resulting in Losses to the proportionate extent such Losses are caused by Client's
negligent acts or negligent omissions.

10. Delays/Force Majeure

10.1 Neither Party shall hold the other Party responsible or liable for damages or delays in performance caused by acts of God,

interruptions in the availability of labor, or other events beyond the control of the other Party, or that could not have been
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reasonably foreseen or prevented, For this purpose, such acts or events shall include but not be limited to weather affacting
performance of services, floods, epidemics, pandemics, war, ricts, strikes, lockouts, ar other industrial disturbances, protest
demonstrations, unanticipated Project site conditions, and inability, with reasonable diligence, to supply personnel,
equipment, or material to the Project. Should such acts or events occur, both parties shall use their best efforis to overcome
the difficulties arising and to resume as soon as reasonably possible the normal pursuit of the Services, Delays within the
scope of this praovision which cumulatively exceed thirty (30} days in any six {(6) month period shall, at the option of either
Party, make this Agreement subject to termination or to renegotiation, Both parties acknowledge that Consultant does not
have control over the review and approval times required by any public authorities that may have jurisdiction over the
Project and any Project times shall be equitably adjusted by the parties to account for such review and approval process.

11.  Estimates of Opinions of Cost

11.1 If applicable, any estimates or opinions of Project or construction costs are provided by Consultant on the basis of
Consultant's experience and qualifications as a Consultant and represents its best judgment as an experienced and qualified
Consultant familiar with the construction industry. Since Consultant has no control over the cost of labor, materials,
equipment or services furnished by others or over competitive bidding or market conditions, it cannot guarantee that
proposals, bid or actual Project costs or construction costs will not vary from any estimates or opinions of costs prepared
by Consultant. Similarly, since Consultant has no control over building operation and/or maintenance costs, Consultant
cannot and does not guarantee that the actual building system operating or maintenance costs will not vary from any
estimates given by Consultant. No fixed limit of construction costs is established as a part of this Agreement.

12. Notice

12.1 All notices authorized or required between the parties, or required by any of the provisions herein, shall be given in writing
and shall be sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, and deposited with an accepted postal service, postage prepaid,
and addressed to the other Party at the address set forth in the first paragraph of this Agreement. Notices may also he

given by personal delivery or sent via a regionally recognized overnight carrier (i.e. FedEx, UPS). Notices shall be deemed
given when delivered.

13. Dispute Resolution

13.1 Step Negotiations, The parties shall attempt in good faith to resolve all disputes ("Controversy™) promptly by negotiation,
as follows. Any Party may give the other Party written notice of any Controversy not resolved in the normal course of
business. Managers of both parties at levels at {east one level above the Project personnel invelved in the Controversy shall,
within five business days after delivery of such notice, establish a plan to meet at a mutually acceptable time and place no
later than ten business days after delivery of such notice, and thereafter as often as they reasonably deem necessary, to
exchange relevant information and tc attempt to resolve the Controversy. If the matter has not been resolved within thirty
days from the referral of the Controversy to the managers, or if no meeting has taken place within ten days after such
referral, either Party may initiate mediation as provided hereinafter, All negotiations pursuant to this clause are confidential

and shall be treated as compromise and settlerment negotiations for purposes of the Federal Rules of Evidence and state
Rules of Evidence,

13.2 Mediation. In the event that any Controversy arising out of or relating to this Agreement is not resolved in accordance with
the procedures provided herein, such Controversy shall be submitted to mediation with a mutually agreed upon mediator.
The mediation shall be filed at the regicnal office of the agreed upon mediator closest to the Project site. The mediation
shall take place at a Consultant's office unless otherwise agreed to by the parties. if the mediation process has not resolved
the Controversy within thirty days of the submission of the matter to mediation, or such longer period as the parties may
agree to, the mediation process shall cease. All mediation documents and discussions pursuant to this clause are
confidential and shall be treated as compromise and settlement negotiations for purposes of the Federal Rules of Evidence

and state Rules of Evidence. Nothing herein shall limit the rights and remedies that the parties may have under this
Agreement or under other legal and equitable proceedings.

14. Termination
14,1 Either Party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement with respect to the Project for convenience, at its option, by
sending a written notice to the other Party (“Notice of Termination”). The Notice of Termination shall specify when and

which services will be discontinued and when termination shall be effective, provided that no termination shall be effective
less than ten (10) catendar days after receipt of the Notice of Termination. No later than thirty (30} calendar days after

71
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termination, Client shall pay Consultant for all Services perfarmed and charges incurred prior to termination, including,
without limitation, costs and expenses related to putting Project documents and analyses in order and rescheduling
persannel and equipment.

14.2 Either Party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement for cause if the other Party commits a material breach of this
Agreement and fails to cure such breach within ten (10) days. A notice containing specific reasons for termination ("Notice
of Default”) shall be sent ta the defaulting Party, and both Parties shall ccoperate in good faith to cure the default or defaults
stated in the Notice of Default. Termination shall not be effective if the breach has been remedied within ten {10) days after
the defaulting Party's receipt of the Notice of Default or the later date specified in the Notice of Defauit, or, if the defaulting
Party has begun to cure such default within such period and such defauli cannot reasunably be cured within such period, if
such defaulting Party diligently prosecutes curing such default to completion (provided that such provision shall not apply
to Client's failure to timely pay an invoice). In the event of termination for cause, Censultant shall be paid the same as in
the case of termination for convenience and the Parties shall have their remedies at law as to any other rights and obligations
between them, subject to the other terms and conditions of this Agreement.

15. Health and Safety

15.1 Consultant and its employees shall follow health and safety precautions which meet federal, state and local regulations, If
asked to conduct any activities which do not conform to said regulations, or which Consultant determines in its sole
discretion to be unsafe or unhealthy, Consultant shall have the option to stop work immediately and inform Client of
unacceptable health and safety conditions, and both Parties shall enter into good faith negotiations to remedy the
unacceptable conditions. |f no remedy can be agreed upon, Consultant may terminate this Agreement in accordance with
Paragraph 14.1.

15.2 Consultant will not implement or be responsible for health or safety procedures for any othet persons other than for its
own employees. Consultant shall not share any responsibility for the acts or omissicns of other parties on the Project or
have control or charge of, or be responsible for safety precautions and programs of Client or other contractors. Unless
otherwise agreed in the scope of Services, Consultant’s observation and testing of portions of the work of other parties on
& Project site shall not relieve such other parties from their responsibilities for performing their work in accordance with
applicable plans, specifications, and health and safety requirements. Client agrees to notify such contractors or other parties
accordingly.

16. Construction Contract Responsibilities

16,1 Where the scope of Services includes the performance of any Services during the construction phase of the Project,
Censultant and Client agree to the following:

16.1.1 It is understood that the purpose of any such services (including any visits to the Project site) will be {o enable
Consultant to better perform the duties and responsibilities assigned to and undertaken by it as an experienced and qualified
design professional, and to provide the Client with a greater degree of confidence that the completed work of Client's
construction contractor(s) ("Contractor”) will conform generally to the contract documents and has been implemented and
preserved by Contractor(s). Consultant shall not, during such visits or as a result of any observations of construction,
supervise, direct or have contral over Contractor's(s’) work nor shall Consultant have authority over or responsibility for the
means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures of construction selected by the Contractor{s) or safety precautions
and programs incident to the work of Contractor(s) or for any failure of Contractor(s} to comply with faws, rules, regulations,
ordinances, codes or orders applicable to Contractor(s) furnishing and performing its (their) work. Consultant does not
guarantee the performance of the construction contract by the Contractor(s), and does not assume responsibility for
Contractor's(s’} failure to furnish and perform its (their) work in accordance with the contract documents. Client shall include
a requirement in all construction phase contracts requiring that the Contractor(s) shall indemnify, defend and hold the
Consultant harmless from any and all claims, demands, causes of action, damages, costs, fines, penalties and expenses,
including attorneys’ fees, property damage, environmental damage, bodily injury, personal injury, losses, or liability based
on, arising out of or alleged to arise from the Contractor's(s’) performance of the work described in the construction phase
contracts,

16.1.2 If Consultant’s contract with the Client so requires, Consultant shall review {or take other appropriate action in respect
of} shop drawings, samples and other data which Contractor(s) is (are) required to submit, but only for conformance
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with the design concept of the Project and compliance with the information given in the contract documents, Such review
or other actions shall not extend to means, methods, techniques, sequences or pracedures of manufacture (including the
design of manufactured products) or construction, or to safety precautions and programs incident thereto, Consultant's
review or other actions, as described above, shall not constitute approval of an assembly or product of which an item is a
component, nor shall it relieve the Contractor(s) of {(a} its (their) obligations regarding review and approval of any such

submittals; and (b} its {theit) exclusive responsibility for the means, methods, sequences, techniques and procedures of
construction, including safety of construction.

17. Environmental Conditions and Subsurface Risks

17.1 Where the scope of Services includes or requires on-site work, visits, investigations, or explorations, Consultant and Client
agree to the following:

17.1.1  Hazardous Substances. Client acknowledges that Consultant has neither created nor contributed te the creation
of any hazardous waste, hazardous substance, radioactive material, toxic pollutant, asbestos, or otherwise dangerous
substance (collectively referred to as "Hazardous Substance”), or dangerous condition at the Project site. Consequently,
Client agrees to defend, indemnify and hold Consultant harmless from and against any and all claims, damages, losses, fines,
suits or causes of action relating to personal injury, property damage, non-compliance or liability arising under
environmental laws including, but not limited to, RCRA, CERCLA or similar federal or state laws, to the extent that such claims
are based on or arise from the existence or release of any Hazardous Substances.

17.1.2  Client's Duty to Notify Consultant of Hazards. Client shall provide Consultant with all information known to Client
with respect to the existence or suspected existence of any Hazardous Substances at, on, or in close proximity to the Project
site. Client will advise Consultant immediately of any information which comes into Client's possession regarding the
existence of any such potentially hazardous substances, or any condition known to Client to exist in, on, under or in the
vicinity of the Project site which might present a potential danger to human health or the environment, -

17.1.3  Consultant shall take reasonable precautions for the health and safety of its employees while at the Project site
with consideration for the available information regarding existing hazards.

17.14  Control of Project Site. Client acknowledges that it is now and shall remain in control of the Project site at all times.
Consultant shall have no responsibility or liability for any aspect or condition of the Project site, now existing or hereafter
arising or discovered. Consultant does not, by entry into an agreement with Client or its performance of services under any
such agreements, assume any responsibility or liability with respect to the Project site; nor shall any liability or responsibilities
be implied or inferred by reason of Consultant's performance of any work at the Project site.

17.1.5  Right of Entry. Unless otherwise agreed, Client will furnish right-of-entry an the land for Consultant to make the
planned borings, explorations, or field tests, Consultant will take reasonable precautions to minimize damage to the land
from use of equipment, but has not included in its fee the costs for restoration of damage that may result from Consuitant's
operations, or the operations of any person or entity engaged by Consultant in the performance of the Services under this
agreement. If Consultant is required to restore the land to its former condition, such work will be accomplished and the
costs, plus fifteen percent (15%), will be added to Consultant's fee.

17.1.6  Subsurface Risks. Client recognizes that special risks occur whenever engineering or related disciplines are applied
to identify subsurface conditions. Even a comprehensive sampling and testing program, implemented with appropriate
eguipment and experience by personnei under the direction of a trained professional who functions in accordance with a
professional standard of practice may fail to detect certain hidden conditions. For similar reasons, actual environmental,
geological, and geotechnical conditions that the Consultant properly inferred to exist between sampling points may differ
significantly from those that actually exists. The Client acknowledges these risks,

17.1.7  Consultant will exercise reasonable and professional care in seeking to locate subterranean structures in the vicinity
of proposed subsurface explorations at the Project site. Consultant will contact public utilities and review plans and
information, if any, provided by public utilities, public agencies and Client. So long as Consultant observes such standard of
care, Consultant will not be responsible for any unavoidable damage, injury, or interference with any subterranean structures,
pipe, tank, cable or any other element or condition if not called to Consultant's attention prior to commencement of services

79
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ar which is not shown, or accurately located, on plans fumished to Consultant by Client or by any other party, or which could
not have been reasonably identified by Consultant.

18. Samples

18.1 Where the scope of Services involves the collection of non-hazardous or hazardous samples, Consultant and Client agree
to the following:

i8.1.17  Non-Hazardous Samples. Consultant will dispose of all soil, rock, water, and other samples thirty (30} days after
submission of Consultant’s initial report. Client may request, in writing, that any such samples be retained beyond such
date, and in such case Consuttant will ship such samples to the ocation designated by Client, at Client's expense, Consultant
may, upon written request, arrange for storage of samples at Consultant's offices at mutually agreed storage charges,
Consultant will not give Client prior notice of intention to dispose of samples.

18.1.2 Hazardous Samples. Although the Client shall have the obligation to dispose of any "hazardous” samples, if
samples collectad from the Project site contain substances defined as "hazardous” by federal, state, or local statutes,
ragulations, codes, or ordinances, Consultant shall, at its option, have the right to: (1) dispose of samples by contract with a
qualified waste disposal contractor; (2) in accordance with Client's written directions, ship such samples by an appropriately
licensed transporter to a licensed disposal site; or (3) return such samples by an appropriately licensed transporter, to Client,
Client shall pay all costs and expenses associated with the collection, storage, transpertation, and disposal of samples. If
Client requests in writing, that any such sample be retained for a period in excess of thirty (30) days, Consultant witi store
such samples at Client's expense and Client will pay an additional fee as charged by Consultant in accordance with its
standard laboratory schedule for storage of samples of a *hazardous substance.”

19. Miscellaneous

19,1 This Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the state where the Project is located,

19.2 Any action to enforce or interpret this Agreement shall be commenced or maintained enly in the judicial or administrative
tribunal in the jurisdiction of the state where the Project is located, and each Party waives any venue, convenient forum,
removal, jurisdiction, or other rights to the contrary.

19.3 Section headings in this Agreement are included herein for convenience of reference only, and shall not constitute a part
of the Agreement or for any other purpose.

19.4 The Client and Consultant respectively, bind themselves, their partners, successors, assigns and legal representatives to the
other Party to this Agreement and to the partners, successors, assigns and legal representatives of such Party with respect
to all covenants of this Agreement. Neither the Client nor Consultant shall assign, sublet or transfer any interest in this
Agreement without the written consent of the other,

19,5 This Agreement represents the entire and integrated Agreement between the Client and Consultant, and supersedes all
prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either written or oral, and may be amended only by written instruments
signed by baoth Client and Consultant,

19.6 If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid or unenforceable by any court of final jurisdiction, it is the intent of the
parties that all other provisions of this Agreement be construed to remain fully valid, enforceable and binding on the parties.

19.7 The parties acknowledge and agree that, due to local licensing and other laws and regulations, Consultant may be required
to perform services in the name of an affiliate or subsidiary for certain jurisdictions, primarily:

a) Ohio, North Carclina, Virginia, Michigan, Vermont - Woodard & Curran Engineering and Geological Services, P.A.
by New York - Woodard & Curran Engineering and Geological Services, P.A. P.C.

in the event Client requests services in the states identified above, the parties agree and acknowledge that the requested
services may be performed in the name of the affifiate or subsidiary identified above under the terms and conditions of this
Agreement,

W& Professional Services Agreament (3/2022 ver.) Page & of 11 6)
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(Signatures on next page)
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% Woodard & Curran

IN WITNESS WHEREGF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the date set forth below

CONSULTANT:
WOODARD & CURRAN, INC.
By: V-Q@'Q

e k‘"—

Printed: Andy Neal

Title: Senior Vice President
Thereunto duly authorized

Date; October 7, 2022

CLIENT:

Del Puerto Water District

sﬂ{/‘}—/;é/[ L CC—U&A‘QQL’“\

Printed: Anthea Hansen

Title: General Manager

Thereunto duly authorized

Date: ; D" -7 ]/ Z 2”/

WE&IC Professional Services Agreement (3/2022 ver.)
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Orestimba Creek Recharge and Recovery Expansion Project
Feasibility Study Report Development for the
Small Surface Water and Groundwater Storage Projects Grant Program
Scope of Services

Proje jective:

The Orestimba Creek Recharge & Recovery project is a joint effort between Del Puerto Water District (DPWD) and the Central
California Irrigation District (CCID) to provide excess surface water into what will be a total 80-acre (a previous 20-acre pilot
project PLUS this separate 60-are expansion project) groundwater recharge facility near Orestimba Creek that would allow the
recharge of 15,000 acre-feet of storm water from Crestimba Creek and/or surface water from the Delia-Mendota Canal, The
Project includes five main components: (1) Securing a temporary and permanent water rights from Orestimba Creek, {2}
Constructing diversion facilities and pipelines between Orestimba Creek, the DMC, and the recharge ponds, (3) Constructing
recharge ponds (4) Developing reccvery wells and associated pipelines, and (5) Conducting geotechnical and soil
investigations to help determine the final design and delineate aquatic resources.

in additien to supporting the Water Rights application process {through a separate Agreement with CCID), Woodard & Curran
has been tasked with developing a Feasibility Study to support a grant funding opportunity under the U.S, Bureau of
Reclamation's Small Surface Water and Groundwater Storage Projects Program. This Feasibility Study is specific to the to the

entire 80-acre recharge facility, but any grant application and future award of grant funding would be specific to the separate
60-acre expansion project.

Scope of Services;

Develop and Submit Feasibility Study:

1) Compile existing project data — gather materials developed during the environmental, permitting, water rights, and
design phases of the project.

2}  Review Reclamation Manual Directives and Standards CMP TRMR-127 (Temporary Release, expires 01/13/2023) —
familiarize with the Temporary Reclamation Manual Release (TRMR) requirements and review process which provides

information for the formulation of feasibility studies for small water storage and/or groundwater storage projects and
clearly states Reclamation’s review process.

3} Develop an outline of information available and data gaps - cross-reference existing data with report requirements,

4)  Develop the Feasibility Study Report — translate and transfer existing information into the template/guidance set by, For
any data gaps, develop a plan to meet the Feasibility Study requirements with DPWD/CCID. In close coordination with the
DPWD/CCID, ensure that all review criteria in CMP TRMR-127 are addressed adequately.

5)  Hold weekly progress meetings - communicate weekly progress and plans forward, Develop strategies to meet the
schedule and report requirements.

6)  Submit the Feasibility Report for USBR review by October 31, 2022 — deliver the final Feasihility Report to DPWD/CCID for
transmittal to USBR reviewers as dictated by the USBR process.

Fee:

Woodard & Curran will provide the above Scope of Services based on a Time & Materials budget using current billing rates for
an amount Not to Exceed $35,000 without prior written authorization. A separate fee will be negotiated to respond to
comments on the Feasibility Study and develop/submit the accompanying Grant Application.

W& Professional Services Agreement (3/2022 ver.) Page 11 of 11
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VI. C.

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-05

BY THE BOARDS OF DIRECTORS OF THE
SAN JOAQUIN RIVER EXCHANGE CONTRACTORS GSA
AND DM-I1 GSA
REGARDING ORESTIMBA CREEK RECHARGE
AND RECOVERY PROJECT

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the DM-II GSA (“DM-II GSA”) and San Joaquin River Exchange
Contractors GSA (“SIRECGSA”) are validly formed and existing Groundwater Sustainability
Agencies located within the Delta-Mendota Subbasin (DWR 5-022.7). The political boundaries
of the DM-II GSA and SJRECGSA are contiguous.

WHEREAS, Del Puerto Water District (“DPWD?”) is a member of the DM-II GSA.
Central California Irrigation District (“CCID”) is a member of the “SIRECGSA”.

WHEREAS, DPWD and CCID are partners in the Orestimba Creek Recharge and
Recovery Project (“Project”). The Project contemplates each party contributing recharge from
available sources, and recovering or transferring a portion of the recharge for beneficial use.

WHEREAS, the recharge ponds associated with the Project are located within the
territory DM-II GSA, and recovery facilities may be located within the territory of the DM-I1
GSA and/or the SIRECGSA. No hydrogeological boundary interrupts the aquifer underlying the
territories of the DM-II GSA and the SIRECGSA.

WHEREAS, the Project is intended to provide mutual benefits to CCID, DPWD, and the
SIRECGSA and DM-II GSA regardless of the political boundary in which the physical recharge
or recovery of water occurs.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the San
Joaquin River Exchange Contractors GSA as follows:

1. The demarcation between the territory of the SIRECGSA and the DM-II GSA is a
political but not hydrogeological boundary. No geological feature or substrata divide the aquifer
underlying the Project recharge and recovery area, or the boundaries of the GSAs adopting this
Resolution. Water recharged within the DM-II GSA may be physically recovered from locations
within the DM-II GSA and the SIRECGSA.

% For purposes of SGMA, including without limitation the calculation of water
balances and water budgets pursuant to the Groundwater Sustainability Plans adopted by the
SIRECGSA and DM-II GSA, the entity responsible for developing recharge through the Project
shall be credited with the benefit of said recharge, without regard to the fact that the physical

/o4






location of recharge or recovery may have occurred outside the developing entity’s GSA
boundary.

3. DM-II GSA and SJIRECGSA acknowledge California law which allows surface
water right holders to store diverted surface water underground. Such storage does not equate to
abandonment of water. The surface water appropriator is allowed to store surface water
underground, recapture the stored water, and put to beneficial use. The entity or entities
responsible for diverting surface water to storage shall be exclusively entitled to recover said
stored water, and the right to recover the augmented water supply shall exist without regard to
the condition of native groundwater yield.

4, The DM-II GSA and SJRECGSA shall, to the extent permitted by law, not

interfere with or impede the allocation or transfer of recharge water or credits in accordance with
applicable laws, rules, and regulations.

3, This resolution shall take effect upon adoption by the Boards of Directors of both
the SJRECGSA and the DM-II GSA.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the
SIRECGSA on October 7, 2022, by the following vote:

AYES: Mike Stearns. Chris Cardella, and Chris Medeiros

NOLES: None

ABSENT: James Nickel

ABSTAIN: None

SAN JOAQUIN RIVER EXCHANGE
CONTRACTORS GSA

By // /% %

Mike Stear ns, Actmg Chair

ATTEST:

By%/%yé,

“Chris White, Secxetaly
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PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the DM-II

GSA on , 2022, by the following vote:
AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:
DM-II GSA
By
President
ATTEST:
By,

Secretary






VI.D-

Anthea Hansen

From: Kevin Kasberg <kkasberg@cvpwater.org>
Sent: Wednesday, September 28, 2022 11:36 AM
To: Robert Harvie; Bob Martin; J. Scott Petersen; Rebecca R. Akroyd; Ward, Robert C; Alma

Antuna; Ann Lubas-Williams; ‘dstroup@usbr.gov'; Dana Jacobson; Anthea Hansen; Ansel
Lundberg; Wilson Orvis; Deanna Sereno; Jeff Sutton; Pablo Arroyave

Cc: Ahmad, Sabir; Stock, Karl J; Washington, Christiane B; Young, Edward R: Williams,
Michelle R

Subject: FY 2023 BIL Aging Infrastructure Application for CVP Reserved Works

Attachments: DRAFT Contractor Notification for Reserved Works Application 09282022 .docx

All,

A proposed agenda for the meeting tomorrow:

1. CVP Transferred Works Operators FY 2023 Application Questions
2. FY 2023 Reserved Works Application
a. Attached DRAFT Contractor Notification requesting letters of support
b. Timeline
i. 10/3 — Application Period Open
ii. 10/14 — Region to Distribute Contractor Notification and Final Project list
iii. 10/21 — Financial Affairs Committee
iv. 10/28 — Potential Informational Session
v. 11/30 - Deadline for Letters of Contractor Support
vi. 12/2 — Application Period Closes

The final project list for the reserved works application is not complete. The costs, reimbursability, and potential rate
impacts will be provided in the final Contractor Notification, scheduled to be distributed Oct 14.

Please feel free to reach out with questions.

Kevin Kasberg, Executive Director
Central Valley Project Water Association
916.448.1638






To: All Central Valley Project (CVP) Water Contractors

Subject: FY 2023 CVP Reserved Works Application for Funding from the Aging infrastructure Account

Dear Water Contractor:

This letter is to inform CVP water contractors that the California-Great Basin Region (CGB} of the Bureau
of Reclamation (Reclamation) plans to submit a FY 2023 application to fund extraordinary maintenance
(XM) of CVP reserved works and to do so the region needs a letter affirming each CVP contractor’'s
willingness to apply for extended repayment no later than November 30, 2022.

The 2021 Bipartisan Infrastructure Law authorized $3.2 billion for XM of Reclamation facilities. These
funds are available to both reserved and transferred works facilities and will be administered through
the Aging Infrastructure Account (Account), a Reclamation-wide revolving fund created to sustain
investment in XM. Reclamation’s FY 2023 Spend Plan authorizes $649 million from the Account through

a competitive funding process with the application period open from October 3, 2022 until December 1,
2022,

For CGB to submit an eligible CVP reserved works XM application, it must be supported by the CvP
water contractors - those responsible for the repayment of the amount reimbursable to water supply.
The projects included in the FY 2023 CVP reserved works XM application are included below in Table 1.
Each individual project will be evaluated independently, and there is no guarantee of any, or all, being
selected for award. Projects that are selected will follow the established reimbursability and terms for

to Congress,

This funding opportunity would allow the region to fund a greater amount of XM than is possible though
annual appropriations. The estimated CVP reserved works XM need is over $1 billion and annual
appropriations are approximately $30 million. The CGB region is not the only region with limited ability
to fund XM and the Account was created as a Reclamation-wide solution. As a revolving fund, the
Account will reinvest the costs and interest recovered into future XM need. This funding opportunity is

Enclosed is a template letter of support, that you may revise as you see fit. The letter of support can be

submitted electronically to Duane Stroup, dstroup@ushr.gov, or mailed to the address provided in the
enclosure. Please respond by November 30, 2022.

CGB will hold an informational session on an agreed upon date in October. If you have any questions in
the meantime, please contact Duane Stroup at (559) 246-8487 or Ann Lubas-Williams at (916) 978-5024.
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Table 1. Projects included in the FY 2023 CVP Reserved Works XM Aging Infrastructure Application

Name

Cost

Water
Reimbursability

Repayment
Period

IRR

M&I Rate

Project 1

Project 2

Project 3

Project 4

Project 5

Project 6

Project 7

Project 8

Project 9

Project 10

Project 11

Project 12

Project 13

Project 14
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[Enclosure]

To:

Bureau of Reclamation
California-Great Basin Region
2800 Cottage Way

Sacramento, CA 95825

Subject: Letter of Support for FY 2023 CVP Reserved Works Application for Funding from the Aging
Infrastructure Account

CGB Region,

The District supports the CGB Region’s FY 2023 Aging Infrastructure Account
application to fund the CVP reserved works extraordinary maintenance projects detailed in the
notification posted on the CBG website.

District Signature

Date

/1@
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SAN LUIS & DELTA-MENDOTA WATER AUTHORITY

DELTA-MENDOTA SUBBASIN
SUSTAINABLE GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT ACT
(SGMA) IMPLEMENTATION GRANT
SPECIAL PROJECT AGREEMENT

THIS SPECIAL PROJECT AGREEMENT (this “Special Project Agreement™) is entered
into this __ day of . 2022 (the “Effective Date™), by and among (i) the San Luis &
Delta-Mendota Water Authority (the “Authority™), and (ii) Del Puerto Water District, a California
water district ("DPWD™); Aliso Water District, a California water district ("AWD™): Central
California Irrigation District, a California irrigation district (“*CCID™); Farmers Water District, a
California Water District: Fresno County, a California local government; Grassland Water District,
a California water district (*GWD"); San Joaquin River Exchange Contractors Water Authority, a
California joint powers authority ("STRECWA"); San Luis Water District, a California water
district (“SLWD™); West Stanislaus Irrigation District, a California irrigation district (“WSID™):
Patterson Irrigation District, a California Irrigation District; Oak Flat Water District, a California
Water District: City of Patterson, a California local government; Merced County, a California local
government: Stanislaus County, a California local government; Panoche Water District, a
California Water District; Tranquillity Irrigation District. a California Irrigation District; Fresno
slough Water District, a Calitornia Water District: Eagle Field Water District, a California Water
District; Pacheco Water District, a California Water District; Santa Nella County Water District, a
California Water District; Mercy Springs Water District. a Calitornia Water District: Widren
Water District, a California Water District; Ora Loma Water District, a California Water District
(collectively, the “Special Project Participants™). The Authority and the Special Project
Participants may be collectively referred to herein as the “Parties™ or individually as a “Party.”

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Special Project Participants, through their participation in their respective
Groundwater Sustainability Agencies ("GSAs™) have entered into that certain Delta-Mendota
Subbasin Coordination Agreement (the “Coordination Agreement™); and

WHEREAS, the GSAs have adopted multiple Groundwater Sustainability Plans (“GSPs™)
within the Delta-Mendota Subbasin, and the purpose of the Coordination Agreement is to ensure
that such GSPs are developed and implemented utilizing the same methodologies and assumptions,
and that the elements of the GSPs are appropriately coordinated to support sustainable management
for compliance with the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (*“SGMA™); and

WHEREAS, a purpose of the Coordination Agreement is to provide the contractual basis
for its signatories to utilize the resources of the Authority to allow for coordinated access to
administrative resources, technical resources. and other services, and to provide mechanisms for
sharing the benefits and expenses of obtaining such resources: and

WHEREAS, the Coordination Agreement further defines the role of the Authority and
describes the services and designated functions to be performed by the Authority, contingent upon
the execution and performance of a separate cost sharing agreement among the participating
parties; and
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WHEREAS, the Authority and rwo of the Special Project Participants, DPWD and WSID, are
also parties to that Northern Delta-Mendota Region Sustainable Groundwater Management Act
Services Activity Agreement (“Northern DM SGMA Activity Agreement™)

WHEREAS, the Authority and one of the Special Project Participants, SLWD, are also parties
to that certain Central Delta-Mendota Region Sustainable Groundwater Management Act Services
Activity Agreement (the “Central DM SGMA Activity Agreement™);

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Northern DM SGMA Activity Agreement and the Central DM
SGMA Activity Agreement, the Authority and Activity Agreement participants may enter into a Special

Project Agreements to carry out special projects that are not carried out by the rest of the Activity
Agreement Participants;

WHEREAS, the Special Project Participants were awarded funding under the SGMA
Implementation Grant (the “Grant”} and Del Puerto Water District is entering into Grant Agreement
Number 4600014644 on behalf of the Parties with the Department of Water Resources ("DWR™) for
this Grant funding; and

WHEREAS, the Special Project Participants cach desire to enter into this Special Project
Agreement with the Authority for the purposes of sharing Grant administration expenses,
consistent with the Coordination Agreement and as appropriate, the Northern DM SGMA Activity
Agreement and Central DM SGMA Activity Agreement, and pursuant to the terms described
herein,

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions contained
herein and in the Coordination Agreement, the Parties hereto agree as follow s:

I Litle. The title of this special project is “Delta-Mendota Subbasin Planning and Projects
SGMA Implementation Grant.”

2. Yunding Source. The Authority shall provide accounting and billing services to

collect from the Special Project Participants in accordance with this Special Project Agreement, the
terins of the Coordination Agreement, and as appropriate, the Northern DM SGMA Activity
Agreement and Central DM SGMA Activity Agrecment.
3, iding Shares. Costs for grant administration services provided by Woodard &
Curran will be shar(,d by Special Project Participants based on shares proportional to the grant award
for each Party. The total funding amount for Woodard & Curran’s grant administration services for
Fiscal Year 2023 for the Grant is $64,293.00. Additional funding will be required for future Fiscal
Years. Additional support and coordination will be provided by Baker, Manock & Jensen, and
Authority staff with such costs to be split proportionally by all Special Project Participants.

4, Descrintion, Woodard & Curran will coordinate necessary Grant reporting and
invoicing processes consistent with requirements outlined in the Grant Agreement. Authority staff will
provide additional support and coordination with DWR as needed.

AL neg. Compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act
("CEQA™) for thc Spcudl Pchct 1du1t11|<,d in the Grant Agreement is outlined in the Grant

Delta-Mendota Subbasin SGMA Implementation Grant Special Project Agreement
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Agreement, including, but not limited to, the ability to apply tor CEQA suspension as described in
the Governor’s Executive Order N-7-22, Action 13, or is not required, because it will not result in a
direct or indireet physical change in the environment and is therefore not a “project” as defined under
Public Resources Code section 21065 and CEQA Guidelines section 13378.

6. Participation. The Authority will assist the Special Project Participants by soliciting
and accepting a proposal from Woodard & Curran. The Authotity has previously entered into a master
service’s agreement with Woodard & Curran, The Authority will provide all administrative services to
the Special Project Participants in accordance with the Coordination Agreement. The Special Project
Participants shall cooperate with each other to achieve the purposes of this Special Project Agreement.

JXp share. The Special Project Participants shall pay, in shares
proportional io the cmmt deud f01 each Fundmo Area, all of the expenses and costs of activities
performed under this Special Project Agreement. Furthermore, any individual Special Project
Participant requesting an amendment to this Special Project Agreement or other sub-contractor
agreement, shall bear the sole cost and expense of preparing and finalizing such amendment. The
Special Project Participants agree that all expenses and costs incurred by the Authority under this
Special Project Agreement are the expenses and costs of the Special Project Participants only, and not
of the Authority or of any other party not participating in this Special Project.

8. Participation Obligations. The Special Project Participants shall hold the Authority,
and all Authority members and other third-parties that are not participating in this Special Project
Agreement, free and harmless from liability and shall indemnify each of them against any and all costs,
losses, damages, claims and liabilities arising from performance of this Special Project Agreement.

9. Ferm and Termination. This Special Project Agreement shall remain in effect once
executed and for the dutation of performance of special project services. This Special Project
Agreement shall terminate at the conclusion of implementation of the special project services
pursuant to the Grant,

10. Information Access, The Special Project Participants shall have reasonable access to
all compiled monitoring data, draft documents, reports, records and other such information that is
developed and submitted to the Authority.

11. ¢ tion_of L LS. As to matters addressed by this Special Project
Agreement, in the uent ut dny (,onﬂu:t ar umomlstuncy between the terms of the Special Project
Agreement and Coordination Agreement, or the terms of the Special Project Agreement and the
Northern DM SGMA Activity Agreement or the Central DM SGMA Activity Agreement, this Special
Project Agreement shall govern. All capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall have
the meaning ascribed to them by the Coordination Agreement,

Delta-Mendota Subbasin SGMA Implementation Grant Special Project Agreement
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SAN LUIS & DELTA-MENDOTA WATER AUTHORITY

By:

Name:

Title:

Date:

SPECIAL PROJECT PARTICIPANTS

Agency Name: Agency Name:
By: By:

Name: Name:

Title: Title:

Date: Date:

Agency Name: Agency Name:
By: By:

Name: Name:

Title: Title:

Date: Date:

Agency Name: Agency Name;
By: By:

Name: Name:

Title: Title:

Date: Date:

Agency Name: Agency Name:
By: By:

Name: Name:

Title: Title:

Date: Date:

Delta-Mendota Subbasin SGMA Tmplementation Grant Special Project Agreement
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SPECIAL PROJECT PARTICIPANTS

Agency Name: Agency Name:
By: By:

Name: Name:

Title: Title:

Date: Date;

Agency Name: Agency Name:
By: By:

Name: Name:

Title; Title:

Date: Date:

Agency Namé: Ageﬁcy Name;
By: By:

Name; Name:

Title: Title:

Date: Date:

Agency Name: Agency Name:
By: By:

Name: Name:

Title: Title:

Date: Date:

Delta-Mendota Subbasin SGMA Implementation Grant Special Project Agreement
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